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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the financial statements of United
Bank Limited (UBL) for the half year ended June 30, 2018.

Performance Overview

The Bank continued its strong balance sheet growth trajectory during the first half of 2018 with
a 13% increase in the average asset base over H1'17. The Bank maintained its focus on actively
acquiring New to Bank (NTB) relationships, with the addition of over 277,000 current accounts
in HY'18 (HY'17: 240,000). As a result, the average domestic current deposits stood at Rs. 438
billion, with a year on year growth of Rs. 62 billion, i.e. 17% (H1'18 vs. H1'17). This continued to
drive efficiencies in the deposits mix as the average domestic current to total deposits
improved from 40% in H1'17 to 44% in H1'18. This resulted in maintaining low cost of deposits
which, despite a rate increase of 75 bps during the current half year, stood at 2.60% in HY'18,
15 bps lower than 2.75% in HY'17.

Gross revenues witnessed an increase of 5% over H1'17 to close at Rs. 42.3 billion during H1'18.
MNet Interest income was recorded at Rs. 28.1 billion, in line with H1'17. Non-fund income stood
at Rs. 14.3 billion, an increase of 16% over H1'17, led by robust growth across fee based
revenues, exchange income and capital gains.

Administrative expenses posted a 7% growth on a year on year basis to reach Rs. 18.5 billion in
H1'18. The cost to income ratio closed at 43.7% compared to 42.9% in H1'17.

A net provision charge amounting to Rs. 4.5 billion was taken during H1'18, mainly to build
coverage against the International loan portfolio. Asset quality was recorded at 7.7% at Jun'18
with a marginal improvement over the 7.9% level at Dec'17.

The unconsolidated profit before tax (PBT) closed at Rs. 10.60 billion during H1'18 (H1'17: Rs.
22.97 billion). Profitability during the first half of the year was impacted by a one-off provision
of Rs. 8.40 billion with respect to past service pension benefits (detailed disclosure in note 17 to
the financial statements). Excluding this charge, the normalized PBT was recorded at Rs. 19.01
billion during H1'18.

Financial Results

UBL posted unconsolidated profit after tax (PAT) amounting to Rs. 6.27 billion for H1'18 (H1'17:
Rs. 13.24 billion). Earnings per share (EP5) stood at Rs. 5.12 compared to Rs. 10.82 during
H1'17. On a consolidated basis, UBL recorded PAT of Rs. 6.11 billion (H1'17: Rs. 13.29 billion).
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Net Markup Income

Met markup income closed at Rs. 28.1 billion during H1'18, in line with the same period last
year. The average asset base grew from Rs. 1.61 trillion in H1'17 to Rs. 1.82 trillion in H1'18,
enabling the Bank to sustain its core interest earnings. This growth is attributed to aggressive
buildup in current deposits within Domestic Bank that witnessed a 17% year on year growth in
averages. Our Branch Banking strategy is geared towards scaling up NTB customer acquisitions
across core deposits. This resulted in the average domestic CASA mix improving from 82.4% in
H1'17 to 86.3% in H1'18. Extending its trend of consistent reduction, the domestic cost of
deposits declined from 2.75% in H1'17 to 2.60% in H1'18. Average deposit base grew by 6%
compared to H1'17 to close at Rs. 1.24 trillion in H1'18. This being in line with a clear strategy of
shedding expensive deposits and maintaining an efficient cost of deposits profile. This has well-
positioned the funding base of the Bank to absorb the impact of the rising rate scenario
emerging from the increase in the SBP target rate from 6.5% in May'18 to 7.5% in July 2018.

The average advances portfolio for the Domestic Bank was recorded at Rs. 455.4 billion with
strong growth of 38%, H1'18 vs. H1'17. This was led by a buildup in the portfolio of the
Corporate Banking Group that delivered 35% growth in averages H1'18 vs. H1'17. This includes
a well-diversified sectoral mix while optimizing on capital allocation through external credit
ratings of the portfolio. SME business brought forth its growth momentum from the previous
year as its average loan book grew by around 2B% over H1'17. The Consumer portfolio
recorded a 33% growth, primarily led by auto financing. This has resulted in a steady
improvement in the advances to deposits ratio from 45.9% at Junl7 to 52.1% at Jun’l8
(Dec’17: 47.3%).

The Bank's PIB holdings averaged at Rs. 487 billion during H1'18 compared to Rs. 555 billion in
H1'17. Invested at an average yield of 8.6% (H1'17: 9.0%), the portfolic maintained strong
support to the overall net interest margins. The average T-Bills portfolio grew from Rs. 163
billion in H1"17 to Rs. 286 billion in H1"18.

Non-Markup Income

Constituting 34% of the Bank’s gross revenue (H1'17: 31%), Non-Fund Income (NFI) grew by
16% over H1'17 to close at Rs. 14.29 hillion. The Bank's NFI is driven by a diversified fee based
product suite along-with a proactive trading strategy of the Treasury and Capital Markets
business segment.
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Fees and commissions, with a share of 47% in overall NFl (H1'17: 48%), closed at Rs, 6.73 billion
in H1'18, a 14% growth over H1'17. The domestic fee income was up by nearly 30% year on
year, with growth across all major lines of businesses.

We further strengthened our leadership in the home remittances space as our market share
improved from 25% in H1'17 to nearly 30% in H1'18. Resultantly, commissions from home
remittances witnessed a 29% growth on a year on year basis. Focus on increasing debit card
penetration continues with over 340,000 new cards issued during H1'18 (H1'17; 329,000) with
fee income growing by 35% over the corresponding period last year. Strong sales drive in
Bancassurance led to commissions recording a growth of 32% compared to H1'17. Income from
trade grew by 15% over H1'17 with focus on enhancing client coverage and capturing non-oil
trade flows. Cash management commissions grew by 26% over the corresponding period last
year as the Bank actively tapped new mandates in addition to deepening relationships with the
existing clientele. Investment banking fees also saw significant growth in the first half of the
vear led by debt arrangement mandates in the power sector.

The Bank realized capital gains amounting to Rs. 4.54 billion (H1'17: Rs. 3.84 billion), mainly on
the fixed income bonds portfolio. Dividend income stood at Rs. 1.16 billion during the period
under review (H1'17: Rs. 1.29 billion}), supported by sustained payouts from investments in the
fertilizer and energy sectors. The overall dividend yield on the portfolio stood at a healthy 9.2%
during H1'18 (H1'17: 9.4%). FX income was recorded at Rs. 1.45 billion during H1'18, an
increase of 76% over H1'17, with active performance by the corporate sales desk along with
strong gains on trading positions.

Provisions and loan losses

Strong recovery efforts led by the Special Asset Management Division resulted in further
reduction in domestic non-performing loans (NPLs) from Rs. 28.19 billion at Dec’17 to Rs. 27.77
billion at Jun'18. Consequently, the Bank recorded net provision reversals of Rs. 543.74 million
in H1'18 (H1'17: net provision reversals of Rs. 1.17 billion) within Domestic Bank. The asset
quality for domestic advances continues to improve, being measured at 5.2% as at June’l8
(Dec'17: 6.2%). This is in line with a focus on maintaining strong underwriting standards and
building on long standing corporate relationships. The domestic NPLs stood well reserved with
coverage at 88.8% at Jun’18 (Dec’17: 90.7%).

Given the economic slowdown within the GCC, prudent classification resulted in further NPL

recognition of Rs. 5.38 billion over Dec'17, as the International NPL stock closed at Rs. 28.26
billion at Jun'18. A provision charge of Rs. 5.08 billion was taken against the international
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portfolio during H1'18 (H1'17: charge of Rs. 705 million). Specific coverage against International
NPLs was enhanced from 58% at Dec’'17 to 71% as at Jun'18.

At the Bank level, asset quality was recorded at 7.7% at Jun’18 (Dec’17: 7.9%) with specific
coverage against NPLs enhanced from 76% at Dec'17 to 80% at Jun'18.

UBL recorded a total net provision charge of Rs. 4.53 billion in H1'18 against net provision
reversals of Rs. 460 million in the corresponding period last year.

Cost management

The Bank seeks to optimize the cost base while ensuring adequate re-investment in businesses
to provide a strong platform for growth initiatives. Administrative expenses were recorded at
Rs. 18.52 billion during H1'18, a growth of 7% over H1'17. Personnel cost increased by 4%
against H1'17 in line with hiring across the network, mainly within the Branch Banking Group.
Despite the impact of annual increments, the overall staff cost level remained well contained.
Premises costs increased marginally by 3% year on year, mainly due to rent renewals while
maintaining a strong focus on reduction in utility expenses. Variable expenses moved in line
with the strong business momentum on deposit maobilization and volume growth in fee based
businesses. The cost to income ratio increased marginally from 42.9% in H1'17 to 43.7% in
H1'18.

Balance Sheet Management

Domestic deposits stood at Rs. 1.06 trillion at Jun’18, a growth of 3% over Dec'17. The market
share was maintained at over 8% at Jun'18 as the Bank's core deposits strength maintained the
liguidity profile. Our Branch Banking strategy is focused on building an optimal CASA profile to
minimize cost of deposits as against aggressive market share acquisition.

The net advances portfolio of the Bank stood at Rs. 675.1 billion at Jun’'18, a growth of 12%
over Rs. 604.6 billion as at Dec’17. The domestic loan book expanded by 19% over Dec'17 with
aggressive build up across the Corporate, Consumer and SME businesses. The Bank’s loan
growth strategy is directed towards booking quality assets while maximizing relationship yields
and maintaining a capital efficient risk weighted assets (RWA) profile.

The investments portfolio closed at nearly Rs. 800 billion at Jun'18 (Dec’17: Rs. 1.09 trillion).
Liguidity is primarily deployed in treasury securities with Rs. 450 billion invested in Pakistan
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Investment Bonds at a yield of over 8.6% and Rs. 218 billion in Treasury Bills. Qur equity book
stood at Rs. 17.6 billion at Jun'18, consisting of investrments with a long-term view to earn
stable dividend streams.

Capital Ratios

UBL's capital ratios remained strong with the Common Equity Tier 1 ratio strengthening by 60
bps to 11.9% as at Jun'18 over the Dec'17 level of 11.3%. The overall Capital Adequacy Ratio
stood at 16.3% (Dec’17: 15.4%).

The Board of Directors of UBL declared an interim dividend of 30% (Rs. 3 per share) in their
meeting in Karachi held on 2 August 2018, along with the results for the half year ended 30
June 2018,

UBL Digital

UBL remains an industry leader in innovation with focus on customer oriented product
development that establishes a niche versus competition. We have made significant headway in
our digital transformation journey, the first milestone being the establishment of the ‘Digital
Lab’ last year to drive innovation in products and processes. For us, Digital is more than a
channel; it encompasses experiential banking guided by human centered design principles.

During the current period, we carried out the nationwide launch of our state of the art net
banking app, “UBL Digital”. The app allows customers to manage their accounts 24/7 in a
secure, efficient and convenient manner and is equipped with advanced features such as
augmented reality, facial recognition and QR code based payments. The app launch was backed
by an effective TV campaign as well as ads on the radio, print and digital media.

Qur branchless banking proposition, UBL Omni, continues to lead the way in banking the
unbanked and contributing towards a more financially inclusive Pakistan. The Omni platform
has brought mobile banking within the reach of every customer, enabling them to open a UBL
Omni bank account at any Omni Dukaan by using their CNIC number and mobile phone
number. The coverage of our Omni ‘Dukaan’ network extends to nearly 40,000 agents spanning
to more than 1,500 cities and towns. Digital client onboarding resulted in over 148,000 NTB
customers being added year to date, taking our total customer base to 2.8 million at Jun'18.
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Economy Review

Pakistan’s macros came under pressure during the period under review, impacted by
heightened political uncertainty and essentially a spiraling current account deficit. Sustained
economic growth, however, still remains a major positive as real GDP witnessed a 5.8% growth
in FY'18 (FY'17: 5.3%).

On a year on year basis, the country’s exports stood at USD 23.2 billion for FY'18 with a 13.71%
increase over FY'17. On the other hand, driven by the strong pickup in economic activity, the
volume of imports increased by 15% to close at USD 60.87 billion for FY'18. Thus, the country's
trade deficit deteriorated from USD 32.5 billion during FY'17 to USD 37.6 billion in FY'18. Home
remittances levels remained unchanged, growing by a mere 1.4% year on year during the
period, Resultantly, the current account deficit widened to USD 18.0 billion during FY'18 against
USD 12.6 billion in FY'17 i.e. an increase of over 42.6%. Furthermore, FX reserves declined from
USD 20.2 billion at Dec'17 to USD 16.4 billion at Jun'18. This resulted in strong pressure on the
USD - PKR exchange rate, which closed at Rs. 121.50 as at June 30" 2018 with a devaluation of
10.0% versus Dec’17. The interbank exchange rate further slipped to below Rs. 128 during the
month of Jul'18.

Inflationary pressures have started to build up as for the month of Jun’18 CPI closed at 5.2%.
However, FY'18 average CPl was recorded at 3.9%, lower than the 4.2% average maintained
during FY'17.

Given the challenges on the external account front, the State Bank of Pakistan, in its monetary
policy statements announced on May 25, 2018 and July 14, 2018 increased the policy rate by 50
bps and 100 bps respectively, taking the benchmark rate to 7.50%. This marks the third rate
hike in the current year, with a 25 bps rate also announced in Jan'18.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) closed in June’l8 at 41,911 points, recording a YTD CY'18
return of 3.6% amidst concerns around the external account, political uncertainty and
downgrade in credit outlook by Moody’s from stable to negative.

Banking sector deposits were reported at Rs. 13.06 trillion in Jun'18, a growth of 5.7% relative
to Dec’17 levels. Banking sector advances for the same period closed at Rs. 6.90 trillion, 5.6%
higher compared to Dec’17. Loan offtake continues to be backed by private sector credit that
grew by 10.9% over Dec’17 to reach Rs. 5.3 trillion at Jun'18. Non-performing loans for the
banking industry rose by 1.3% against Dec’17 to end Mar'18 at Rs. 600.4 billion, with the gross
infection ratio improving by 10 bps to 8.3% (Dec'17: 8.4%).
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UBL International

The market scenario remained challenging across the GCC region in view of range bound oil
prices, fiscal tightening and imposition of new taxes. We are pursuing a clear strategy to de-risk
the International business with maintaining the asset base only within established, top tier
corporate relationships, participating within Fl syndicates and Treasury investments. UBL
International has increased its efforts to maximize recoveries from non-performing accounts
and prudently providing for potential loan losses. Being cognizant of the portfolio stresses, we
have enhanced our scale of due diligence and strengthened risk vigilance. The deposits strategy
is to shore up CASA deposits to strengthen the sustainable, core funding base as well as
reducing portfolio concentration. UBL International’s average deposits base closed at USD 2.2
billion, in line with H1'17. The cost of deposits was maintained at a relatively lower level of
2.2%, despite the increase in US FED interest rates (Jun'17: 1.25%). The gross advances portfolio
closed at USD 1.54 billion (Dec’17: USD 1.72 billion) with asset vields at 5.0% for H1'18 (H1'17:
4.9%). The investment portfolio, consisting primarily of foreign bonds, closed at USD 662 million
(Dec’17: USD 708 million) yielding a healthy 6.5% (H1'17: 7.6%).

Credit Rating

ICR-VI5 Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) re-affirmed the entity ratings of United Bank
Limited (UBL) at ‘AAA/A-1+" (Triple A/A-One Plus) on June 29, 2018. Outlook on the assigned
ratings is “Stable’, The ratings incorporate the sustained soundness in key performance areas
including asset guality, capitalization and profitability. These are reflective of UBL's strong
domestic franchise, market share and a well-diversified business model.

Future Outlook

At UBL, we remain firm in our commitment to actively contribute to Pakistan's economic
development by investing in sectors that drive the country's growth engine and enabling better
access to financial services. Branch Banking shall remain at the core of our franchise where we
seek to expand our customer footprint by targeting NTB relationships and maximizing network
performance. We shall deepen our penetration in the lending space by actively tapping
financing opportunities in the power and infrastructure sectors. Credit expansion shall be
directed by risk optimization and building RWA synergies across both Domestic and
International Bank. The Bank seeks to strengthen its technological leadership by building
payment ecosystems and state of the art digital offerings. We strive to elevate service quality
standards that exceed our customer expectations, while driving cost efficiencies across
branches and controlling offices. We remain well positioned to grow our balance sheet in a
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prudent manner, while leveraging on an efficient deposits mix that supports core earnings in a
rising rate environment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REVIEW REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF UNITED BANK LIMITED ON REVIEW OF INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated condensed interim statement of financial position of
United Bank Limited (“the Bank") as at June 30, 2018 and the related unconsolidated condensed interim
profit and loss account, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of comprehensive income,
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of changes in equity and unconsolidated condensed interim
cash flow statement, and notes to the financial statements for the six-month period then ended (here-in-
after referred to as the "interim financial statements™). Management is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of this interim financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these
interim financial statements based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagemenis 2410,
“Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity". A review of
interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in
scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant malters that might
be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying
interim financial statements are not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting.

Conclusion

The figures for the quarters ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 in the unconsolidated condensed
interim profit and loss account and unconsolidated condensed interim statement of comprehensive
income have not been reviewed and we do not express a conclusion on them.

The engagement partners on the review resulting in this independent auditor’s review report are Amyn
Malik (KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.) and Salman Hussain (A. F. Ferguson & Co.).

A.F. Ferguson & Co. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Date: August 6 2018

Karachi
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UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax asset - net

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Subordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liability - net

Ohther liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY:
Share capital
Resarves

Unappropriated profit

MNote

D~

10
"

Surplus on revaluation of assels - nat of deferred tax 12

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

13

{Un-audited)
June 30,
2018

{Audited)
December 31,
2017
Restated

—ereeeee{RUpe€s in *000)—————

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an Integral part of these unconsolidated condensed Interim financial statements,

' L
o & . o A

Aameet Karachiwalla Slma Kamil Amar Zafar Khan Arshad Ahmed Mir

Chiel Financial Otfficer Director Director

President &
Chial Executive Officer

159,775,666 157,582 GBY
29,746,427 18,516,198
41,959,858 33,664,174

799,772,375 1,001,786,626

675,129,458 604,562,193
47 691,038 46,204,564

3,643,405 -
58,644 376 54,065,004
1,816,362 633 2,007 381,446
15,561,196 13,388,316
283,439,443 512,650,465
1,315,362,651 1,289,247 251
- 2,611,841
40,262,727 30,176 426
1,664 626,017 1,848,074,359

151,736,616 159,307,047
12,241,798 12,241,798
48,685,361 43,846,877
66,424,324 70,912 406

127,351,483 127,001,081
24 385133 32,305,966

151,736,616 159,307 047

Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, OBE, HPK

Chalrman
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UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (UN-AUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Mark-up / return / inlerest eamed
Mark-up / return / interest expensed
Net mark-up / retumn / interast income

{Provision) f reversal against loans and advances - net

Reversal of provision against lendings to financial
institutions - net

Pravision for diminution in value of investmeanis - net

Bad debts written off directly

Net mark-up / retumn / interest income after provisions

MHon mark-up [ interest income

Fea, commission and brokerage incoma

Dividend Incoma

Income from dealing in foreign currencies

Gain on sale of securities - net

Unrealised {loss) / gain on revaluation of investments
classified as hald for trading

Cther income

Tolal non mark-up /! inlerest income

MNon mark-up / interest expenses
Administrative expenses

Other provisions [ write offs - net
Workers' Welfare Fund

Other charges

Total non mark-up / interest expanses

Profit before extraordinary / unusual item and taxation

Extraordinary / unusual item - Accrual in respect of
pansicn liability

Profit before taxation
Taxation - Current

- Priosr

- Deferred

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - baslc and diluted

Mote

14
15

16

17

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

' L
. Fad f_:" *
IAE‘KM i l&"—"‘-g
Aameet Karachiwalla Slma Kamil
Chiel Financial Cificer

President &
Chial Executive Officer
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Amar Zafar Khan
Director

April - June  April - June January - January -
2018 2017 June 2018 June 2017
(Rupees in "000)

26,018,152 25,794 875 54,164,809 49,683,101
(11,817,397} (11492275} (26,109.232) (21.568,388)
14,200,755 14,302 600 28.055577 28014713
(1,694,334) G692 578 tﬂ.?ﬂd.&ﬂd:l BB3,403

64,548 7.260 122,149 B,280
(555,819) (137.480) {574,452) {188, 888)
(22,110} (8,913) {38,015 {24,888)
{2,207.714) 553.445 (4,193,122 457 BB7
11,993,041 14,856,045 23,862,455 28472600
3,781,008 3,120,833 6,727 671 5,807,757
588,028 739,386 1,158,938 1,291,554
911,193 404,209 1,446,754 B2z 422
1,476,021 1,493,080 4,543,115 3.833.565
(585) 8,082 (1.280) 2,483
221,039 304,698 410,801 488,043
6,976,702 6,070,268 14,285 9RO 12.345 824
18,969,743 20,926,313 38,148 444 40,818,424
9.861,788)] [ (8.727.242) [ (18,516,714} [ (17,316,904)
(412,018) (13,320} (338,980) 2,508
(158,208) (241,073) (282,035) (473,371}
{3,587) {58,322) {4,019} {58,640)
{10,435,601)  (9,109.957) (19,141,748} (17.B46407T)
8,534,142 11,816,356 19,006,626 22972017
(2,000,000) B (8,404 635) -
6,534,142 11,816,356 10,602,061 22872017
{3,387,137)| [ (a.298,744)] [ (5.596,338)] [ (8.301,375)
- {458,532) 172,200 (459,532)
478,448 {1,069,090) 1,002,779 {966,975)
{2, 8908,691) (5.827.366)  (4.331,357)  (9.727.BB2)
3,625,451 5,988,990 6,270,704 13,244,135
{Rupees)
2.96 4,89 5.12 10.&&
W g—
Arshad Ahmed Mir Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, OBE, HPK
Director Chairman




UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

April - June  April - June January - January -
2018 2017 June 2018 June 2017
(Rupees in "000)
Profit after taxation 3,625,451 5,988,950 6,270,704 13,244,135
Other comprehensive income:
Htems that are not to be reclassified to profit or foss in
subsequent periods - - - -
Hems that may be reciassified to profit or loss in
subsequent perfiods
Exchange differences on translation of
net investment in foreign branches 2,105,218 (186,695) 4,211,414 (79.964)
2,105,218 (186,695) 4211414 (79,964)
Other comprehensive income transferred to equity 5,730,669 5,802,295 10,482,118 13,184,171
lfems thal may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods
Deficit arising on revaluation of
available for sale securities (5.991,127) (4.431,557)) | (12,104,958) {4,560,882)
Related deferred tax reversal 2,096,894 1,557.130 4,236,749 1,506,308

(3,894,233) (2.874427) (7.868.249) (2,064,574)

Total comprehensive income during the period - net of tax 1,836,438 2,927 Bed 2,613,869 10,199,597

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed intenim financial statements.,
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Aameet Karachiwalla Slma Kamil Amar Zafar Khan Arghad Ahmed Mir Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, OBE, HPK

Chiel Financial Officer President & Ciirechar Dot
Chiel Executive Officer Chairman
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UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT (UN-AUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Less: Dividend incoma

Adjustments:
Depreciation on operaling fixed assets
Depreciation on Istamic financing against leased assets (ljarah)
Amorlization
Workers' Welfare Fund
Prowision for retirement benefits
Prowision for compeansated absancas
Provision [ (reversal) against loans and advances - ned
Reversal of provision against kendings to financial institutions - net
Provision for diminution in value of imvestments - nat
Gain on sale of operating fixed assets - nel
Gain on sale of jjarah assets - nat
Umnrealised loss ! {gain) on revaluation of investments classified as held for trading
Bad debts written-off directly
Other provisions - net

{Increase) | decrease in operating assets
Lendings to financial instilutions
Hedd for trading securiies
Advances
Other assets (axcluding advance taxation)

Increase | (decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills pavabile
Bormowings
Deposits and other accounts
Other kabilitees {excluding current laxation)

Paymenis on account of staff retirernent benefits
Income taxes pald
Net cash (outfiow) § inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investments in available for sale securities

Net invesimants in held to maturity securities

Net investments in subsidiaries and associales
Dividend income recaived

Investment in operating fixed assets

Sale proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assels
Sale proceeds from disposal of jjarah asselz

Net cash inflow § (outflow) from investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Exchange differences on translation of net imvestment in forelgn branches
Increase | (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during the period
Cash and cash equivalents 3l beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period

January -
Juna 2018

January -
June 2017

e RUpEES IN '00) =

10,602,061 22,972,017
{1,158.938) {1,201 554)
6,443,123 21,680,463
1,116,336 992 052
96,272 o7.272
216,038 163,955
282,035 473,371
8,758,312 309,864
64,120 149,358
3,704,804 (663,403)
(122,149) (8,260)
574,452 188,888
{23.316) (25,785)
{1,301) (1,144)
1.290 {2.483)
36,015 24,888
338,980 (2,508)
15,041,688 1,606,066
24,485,011 23,376,520
18,309,736) {1,854 631}
69,497 486 (20,539 456)
(75,539,157) (54,260,919}
{1,452 973) {B08,806)
{15,804, 380) {77.603.942)
272,880 5788 303
(219,211,022) 188,776,802
26,115,400 75,882,975
1,244,284 2,045 911
{188 678.458) 272,504,081
(180,997,827 215,366,668
(692,918) {445,533)
{8,658,368) {11,340 709)
1190,347,113) 206,579,326
181,416,480 [154,719,041)
27,105,944 (25,330, 107)
407,951 2,816,909
1,066,500 1,114,221
(2,767.597) {3.764.312)
33,952 47,746
30,622 37,685
207,263,552 (179, 707,800)
{8, 704,645} (8,264,660}
B,211,7%4 18,486,747
4,211,414 (72,964)
12,423,208 18,406,783
177,098,885 146,427 855
189,522,063 164,834 638

The annexed nates from 1 1o 26 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensad interim financial statements,
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UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Capital
Statutary reBarve - Unapprog-
Share capitail [~ ik || slossd probt Total
‘Lranalation
-{Rupess in
Balance as at January 1, 2017 [Audited) 12241798 27197615 13256800 84246270 116942573
Transactions with owners for the six months ended June 30, 2017
Final cash dividend - Decamber 31, 2016 declared subseguant io the
yedir and at Rs. 4.0 per share . . . (4,808, 719)| | (4,806,719}
Inlanim cash dividend - March 31, 2017 declared al Rs. 3.0 per share = - - 3,672 530/ 3,672
* - - (8,568,258}  (B,566.258)

Tatal comprehensive income for the six months ended June 30, 2017

Profit after taxation for the six months ended June 30, 2017 |
Other comprahensive Incoma - nat of ax

= " = " . | 13,244,135 | 13,244 135
5 ; {79,964 : 70064

Total comprohansive income for the six months anded Juna 30, 217 - - 79,964) 13,244,135 13,184,171
Transfer from surplus on revalueton of fixed assets fo unappropristed

ol - nat of tax . - - 25018 25,019
Transfer o slatutory reserce . 1,324 414 . (1,324,414}
Balence as at June 30, 2017 [(Un-awdited) 12,241,798 ZB522 020 13476826 67 621,752 121562505

Transactions with ewners for the six months ended Decamber 31, 2017

. " (3,872,500} |  (2,672,539)
- - 3,672,550 3 672 530
= - - (7T, 345,078)  (7,345,078)

Interim cash dividend - Juna 30, 2017 declared # Rs, 3.0 per share | - "
Inerim cash dividend - Seplamber 30, 2017 deciared al Ra. 3.0 par share

Total comprehansive income for the six months ended
Decamber 31, 217

Profit after taxation for the sbx manths ended December 31, 2017 I - " - | - 12,177,097 12177.007
Cthar comprahensive Incoma - nat of fax - - $30,213 107,61 522 565

Total comprahensive noome Tor e sic months ended December 31, 217 E - 930,213 12,0694T9 12,890,692
Transfor from swplus on rovaluation of fiwed assels io unapprogiated

profd - net of lax - - - 25,547 25,547
Transier 1o stalulory resends . 1217708 - {1,217, 709}
Balance as at Decomber 31, 2017 as proviously reported {Audited) 12241798 ZBTI9T3E W4 107139 T1153,981 127242660
Change in @ecounting policy - refer nate 4.1.1 - . . {241,585) {241,585)
Balance as at Decembor 31, 2017 (Restated) 12241798 8739736 14107130 TO912406 127001081
Change in pocounting policy a5 af January 1, 218 - refer note 4.1.2 - - - {1,590,668) (1,590 68H)
Balance as at January 1, 2018 [Restated) 12,241,788 29738738 14107138 68321718 125410383

Transactions with owners for the six months ended June 30, 2018

Final cash dividend - December 31, 2017 dedared subsequent fo the
year end at Rs. 4.0 per shars - - - (4,806,7100| | (4,896,710
Interim cash dividend - March 31, 2018 declared &1 Rs.3.0 pef shane - - - 3,872, 3 672,530
2 . |8,580,258)  (B,560,258)

Total comprehansive incoma for the six months ended June 30, 2018

Profit after taxation for the sk months ended June 33, 2018 - - 6,270,704 6,270,704
Other oomprehensie incoma - net of lax - 4231 114 4,211,414
Totad comprehanshve income for the sk months ended June 30, 2018 - - 4,2'11114 szmm 10,482,118
Transfer from sunplus on revaluation of fixed sssets fo unapprogrslsd

el - nat of tax - - - 28,230 28,230
Transfer to statubory msene - g2T.0ro - (8270700 -
Balance as at June 30, 2018 (Un-aedited) 241,758 30366808 BOB 18,318,553 _68.424.304 127351483
The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed Interim financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

31

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

United Bank Limited (the Bank) is a banking company incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking and
related services, The Bank's registered office and principal office are situated at UBL Building, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area,
Istamabad and at UBL Head Office, I. |. Chundrigar Road, Karachi respectively. The Bank operates 1,363 (December 31,
2017: 1,361) branches inside Pakistan including 93 (December 31, 2017: 93) Islamic Banking branches and 2 {December
31, 2017: 2) branches in Export Processing Zones. The Bank also operates 18 (December 31, 2017: 18) branches outside
Pakistan. The Bank is a subsidiary of Bestway {Holdings) Limited and Bestway (Holdings) Limited is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Bestway Group Limited which is incorporated in the United Kingdom.,

The Bank's ordinary shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. Its Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) are on the list
of the UK Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange Professional Securities Market. These GDRs are also eligible
for trading on the Intemational Order Book System of the London Stock Exchange. Further, the GDRs constitute an
offering in the United States only to qualified institutional buyers in reliance on Rule 1444 under the US Securities Act of
1933 and an offering outside the United States in reliance on Regulation 5.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In accordance wilth the direclives of the Federal Govarnment regarding the shifting of the banking sysiem to Istamic
modes, tha State Bank of Pakistan {SBP) has issued various circulars from lime to tima. Parmissible forms of rade-related
meodes of financing include purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate
mark-up in price on dafarred payment basis, The purchases and sales arising under these arrangaments are not reflacted
in these unconsolidated condensed inlerim financial statements as such, but are restricled to the amount of facility aclually
utilized and the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon. The Islamic Banking branches of the Bank have complied with tha
requiraments sat out under the lstamic Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Charered Accountants of
Pakistan and notified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

Key financial figures of the Islamic Banking branches are disclosed in note 23 to these unconsofidated condensed interim
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated condensed Interim financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of:

- Intermational Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as nofified under the Companies Act, 2017;

= Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962;
= Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).

Wherever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Acl, 2017 or the directives issued
by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the sald directives prevail.

Tha SBP vide BSD Circular letter Mo, 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting
Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and International Accounting Standard 40, Investment
Property for banking companies till further instructions. Moreover, SBP vide BPRD circular no, 4, dated February 25, 2015
has deferred the applicability of lslamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) 3, Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposils.
Further, according to the notification of the SECP issued vide SRO 411(1)/2008 dated Aprl 28, 2008, international
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7. Financial Instruments: Disclosures has not been made applicable for banks.
Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated
condansed interim financial stataments. Howewver, investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the
requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP. Further, segment information is baing disclosed in accordance with
SBP's prescribed formal as par BSD circular 4 dated February 17, 2006 which prevails over the requirements spacified in
IFRS 8.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2.3

34

ar

SECP vide its notification SRO 633 (1)f2014 dated 10 July 2014, adopted IFRS 10 effective from the pariods starting from
30 June 2014, However, vide its nofification SRO 56 (1)/2016 dated 28 January 2016, it has been notified that the
requirements of IFRS 10 and section 237 of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 will not be applicable with respect
to the investment in mutual funds established under Trust structure.

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed after enactiment of the Companies Act, 2017, on May 30, 2017, The SECP
vide its Circular No. 23 of 2017, dated October 04, 2017 allowed all those companies whose financial year closed on or
before December 31, 2017, were required to prepare financial statements in accordance with the provisions of repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Accordingly, these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have bean
prepared in accordance with Companies Act, 2017, Change Io the significant accounting policy, as a result of the
enactmenl of the Companies Act, 2017, has been delailed in note 4.1.1. Moreover, for cerlain overseas branches, the
Bank has changed its accounting policy and followed the requirements of IFRS 9 as more fully explained in note 4.1.2.

The disclosures made in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been limited based on a
format prescribed by the SBP vide BSD Circular Letter No. 2 dated May 12, 2004 and 1AS 34, Interim Financial Reporting.
They do nol include all the disclosures required for annual financial statements, and these unconsolidated condensed
interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank for the
year ended December 31, 2017.

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements represent the separate condensed interim financial
statemenls of the Bank. The consolidated condensed interim financial statements of the Bank and ils subsidiary
companies are presented separately.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretations with respect 1o the approved accounting standards
would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respactive standard or interpretation:

- IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments’ - effactive date: July 1, 2018

The Bank is currently awaiting instructions from the SBP as applicability of 1AS 39 was deferred by the SBP fill further
instructions. However, the SBP has instructed banks to prepare potential gqualitative and guantitative impact
assessments 85 a result of adoption of IFRS 8 using the performa financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2017, The Bank is required to submil ils impact assessment to the SBP in due course of ime. For cerain
overseas branches, the Bank has adopted IFRS 9 in respect of provision for impairment as more fully explained in
note 4.1.2,

= IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' - effective date: July 1, 2018

The |IASE has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue, This will replace |AS 18 "Revenue’ which covers
caonftracts for goods and services and IAS 11 'Construction Conftracts' which covers construction contracts.

Tha new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfars to
a customer - so the notion of control replaces the existing nation of risks and rewards. A new five-step process has
been introduced which must be applied before revenue can be recognised. Entities will have a choice of full
retrospective application, or prospective application with additional disclosures.

Tha Bank is currently in the process of assessing the potential impacts of changes required in revenue recognition
policies upon adoption of the standard.

- IFRS 16 'Leases’ - effective date: January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on
statement of financial position. The standard removes the current distinction between operating and finance leases
and requires recognition of an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial lability to pay rentals for vitually
all lease confracts. An optional exemption exisis for short-lerm and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will
not significantly change.

As at the reporting date, the Bank has non-cancellable operating lease commitments. However, the Bank is currently
in the process of assessing the potential impacts of changes as a result of adoption of IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

There are certain other new and amended standards, Interpretations and amendmenis that are mandatory for the Bank's
accounting periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or will not have any
significant effect on the Bank's operations and are therefors not detailed in these unconsolidated condensed interim
financial statemenis.

38  Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year

Thare are cerain new and amendad slandards, interprelations and amendments thal are mandalory for the Bank's
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any
significant effect on the Bank's operations and therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial
stalements,

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41 Tha accounting poficies adopled in the preparation of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements ara
consistant with those applied in the preparation of the unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended
December 31, 2017, except for the following:

411  Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of deferred tax

Tha Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealad through the enaciment of the Companias Act, 2017. However, as directad
by the Securiies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular Mo. 23 dated October 4, 2017, the financial
reporting requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were only made applicable for reporting perieds starting from January
1, 2018,

Consaquently, the Bank has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arsing on revaluation of fixed assets. The
Bank's previous accounting policy (as described in Mote 5.5.1 of the annual unconsolidated financial statements), In
accordance with the repealed Companies Ovdinance, 1984, required that a deficit arising on revaluation of a particular
propery was (o be adjusted against the total balance in the surpius account or, if no surplus existed, was io be charged 1o
the profit and loss account as an impalrment of the asset. The Companies Act, 2017 removed the specific provisions
allowing the above treatment. A deficit arising on revaluation of a particular property is now to be accounted for in
accordance with IFRS, which requires that such defict cannot be adjusted agains! surplus in another property, but is to be
taken to the profit and loss account as an impairment.

The effect of this change in accounting policy, which is applied with retrospective effect, is as follows:

As at December 31, 2017

Previously
statod Change Restated
Rupees in ‘000
Impact on Statement of Financial Position
Unappropriated profit 71,153,991 (241,585) 70,912 406
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets [ non-banking assets 25,835,597 241585 26,077.182

There s no impact on the unconsolidated condensed Interim profit and loss account, unconsolidated condensed interdm
statement of comprehensive income and unconsclidated condensed interim cash flow statement.

Tha impact above relales to revaluation of fixed assels carned oul as al December 31, 2017, There wera no material
impacts relating o periods prior to December 31, 2017,

41.2 Impairment on financial assets

As per the accounting policy of the Bank, the provision against balances with other banks, investments, lendings to
financial institutions and advances of overseas branches is made as per the requirement of the respective regulatory
regimes. During the current year, IFRS - 9 became applicable for certain overseas branches of the Bank (i.e. branches in
LUAE, Bahrain and Qatar). Accordingly, in respect of such branches, the Bank has changed its accounting poficy and has
followed the requirements of IFRS - 9, while determining the provisioning requirements against balances with other banks,
investmants, lendings to financial institutions and advances, Under this standard, provision against balances with other
banks, investments, lendings to financial institulions and advances is determined under expected credit loss model.
Previously, this was determined under the incurred loss model.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The adoption of this standard by certain overseas branches resulled in addiional provisioning requirement of Rs, 2.447
blllion (net of deferred tax amounting to Rs. 1.590 billion) as at December 31, 2017. The amount of additional provision has
been adjusted in the opening relained eamings as allowed under IFRS 9 and permitted by the State Bank of Pakistan. Tha

impacts of change in policy can be summarised as follows:

As at June 30, As at January

2018 1, 2018
Impact on Statement of Financial Position e {RUpEES N 000 )—eeeee
Balances with other banks 71,833 92,056
Invesiments 905,649 871,640
Lendings to financial institutions 67,721 136,486
Advances 1,107,530 1,135,786
Other liabilities {provision against off balance sheel cbligafions) 605,865 211,244
2,758,358 2447212
Less: relaled deferred tax (965,439} (B36,524)
1,792,959 1,580,688
For the six
months ended
June 30, 2018
Impact on Profit and Loss Account (Rupees in "000)
- Prafit befora tax would have baen higher by 311,188
(Rupees)
- Eamings per share would have been higher by 0.17

There would ba no impact on the cash flow statement.

42 The financial risk manageman! objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the unconsclidated financial
statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2017.

3. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

51 These unconsalidated condensed inferim financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
excepl that certain operaling fixed assels [ non-banking assels acquired in salisfaction of claims have been stated al
revalued amounts, certain investments and derivative financial instruments have been stated al fair value and net
ochbiigations in respect of defined benefit schemes are carmied at their present values.

52 Judgements and estimates

The preparation of these unconsolidaled condensed interim financial slatements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assels and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in the application of its
accounting poficles. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumsiances. These estimales and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions o accounting estimates are recognized in the pericd in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period. or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant judgmenis made by management in applying its accounting policies and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the unconsolidated financial statemenis of the Bank for the year ended
December 31, 2017,

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
E. LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ~—————{Rupees in "000)
Call money lendings 17,700,000 585,000
Repurchase agreement lendings 5,351,000 6,931,853
Bal Muaijjal receivable from State Bank of Pakistan - 3,108,215
Cther lendings 1o financial institutions 19,822,412 23,870,481
42,873,412 34,496,649
Provision against lendings to financial institutions (913.524) {832475)
41,950,888 33,664,174
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

T INVESTMENTS {Un-audited) {Aardited)
June 302018 [ bor 31207
7.1  Investments by typa Held by Glven as Total Held by Given as Total
Mof* __eank colisteral —— collatoeal
[Rupees in
Hald for trading securities
Market Treasury Biss 38 230 550 B 117, 45 B3 507 104,501.2
Pakistan Investment Bonds | g.gg” “l mam” - mgrsl
34 235976 1352, = 5.568,458 50,609,745 45,363,907 105,083,652
Avalinbis for sale securities
Markot Treagury Bils 112356030 G2 TI AT | [ I TR 108,318,347 | [ 182204 552 32 51BATY
Pakistan Investment Bonds 18,112,785 | | 150077842 | | 171,100,427 23,830,510 | | 205.720.062 220,560,472
Government of Pakistan Sukuk 18.758.227 - 18,753,227 18,102.273 - 18,102.273
Govemment of Pakistan Eurcbonds 16,014,858 - 16,014,858 14,581,547 - 14,581,547
Ordinary shares of listed companias 17.582.602 - 17,562 602 18,3652.304 - 18,362,304
Proferoncn shares 42687 . 47T 1,315 . 351,315
Ordinary shares. of unsted companies 753,181 - 753,181 258,507 E 258,507
invisstmant in RETT 458,500 - 453,580 458,580 - 458,560
Tarm Finance Certificates 581,351 - 631,351 441,406 - 441,406
Fansign bonds - sovomign 30,907,283 - 30,807 283 25512258 - 25,512.258
Fareign bonds - others 7142571 . 7,142 571 10,450,815 - 10,450,615
223004405 215,054,750 409,650,004 1713972 00934500 21 BB, 366
Hislel to maturity securltios
Markat Treasury BiEs. B4 278 - ¥ 6,501,781 - 6,501,761
Pakistan Investmant Bonds 275,308 401 . 279,305 401 311, 7EB.54T . 311,786,517
Government of Paistan Eunsbonds 6.106,798 - £,108,718 5,574,871 - 5574671
Govemment of Pakistan Sukuk 620,771 - 629,771 - - -
Tarm Finance Cartilicates 6.256,187 - B.253,197 6,526,766 - 6,526,765
Buhikcs 12083833 - 12,083,833 10,812.247 - 10,512,247
Participation Term Certificates 437 . 437 437 . 437
Deberiures 2,268 - 2,765 2268 - 2268
Foresign bonds - saveneign 12,159,709 - 12,158,799 9,784,541 - 9,784,641
Farsgn bonds - othars. 1,263,046 - 1,263,448 1.2TRE1T - 1218617
Recovery note 374,481 . T4 A 340,333 . 340,333
CDC SAARC Fund 264 - 254 240 - 240
Commarcial Papor 227234 - 227 224 prierl] - T2
325,345,105 5 325,945,125 352,716,740 = LTG0
Assoclstos
UBL Licuidity Plus Fund 10,079 . 0,078 10,079 - 0,079
LBL Money Market Fund 2,850 - 9,850 8,350 - 8,850
Al Amean Islamic Asset Alocation Fund 216,000 - 216,000 216,000 - 216,000
Al Ampgn Islamic Financial Planning Fund 200,000 - 200,000 1,751 - 301,751
USBL insurens Limited 240,000 . 240,006 240,000 . 240,000
Hhushhal Bank Limited 73 B32 485 - 832 485 B3Z 485 - 832 465
Oiman United Exchangs Comparny. uscst 14,862 - 14,852 14,152 - 14,152
DA Gogen Limised LF] - - - - - -
1,523,276 - 1 5EETh T ETH - 1,524,017
Subsidiaries
Uniied Natisnal Bank Limited (LBL UK) 2855223 - 2855223 2.555.223 - 2555223
UBL (Switzediand) AG SB.837 - 569,837 580837 - 589837
UL Fund Managors Limiiod 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 - 100,000
USBL Bank {Tanzania) Limited 1,831,006 . 1,831,008 1,322 014 . 1,322 014
Unriied Executors and Trisstees Company Limied 30,100 - 30,100 30,100 - 30,100
5406168 . 5406 165 A EETATA - A 59T 1T

520,315,838 247207 251 BOT 522 Rad 640, 551,748 445 318,501 1,085, 970,249
Prowvision for deniniation in value of

iyestments T4 (5.226.8T1) 3 {5.226,871) (3, TEB.560) = (3, Te8.660)
Investments - ned of provigions 585,088 667 247 207 251 802,205,018 E36,583,088 445318501 1,082, 201,568
Surplus ! (deficil) on revaluation of

avadable for sals sbouritiss 81,004 {2,603, 257) {2,522,253) 3,601,856 5,980,887 0582 745
(Deficit) I supius on mvaluation of

thaid for trRcing sacunties 11247} [E5:H] {1,280) 118 2173

it mmmmﬂm

7.2 As a resull of exercise of a pledge in 2013, the Bank holds 20.99% of the issued and paid up capital of DHA Cogen Limated
withowt any consideration having been paid. Consequently, DHA Cogen Limited is classified as an associated company.

7.3 This represents the Bank's subscription towards the pald-up capital of Khushhali Bank Limited. Pursuant to section 10 of
the Khushhali Bank Ordinance, 2000 strategic investors including the Bank cannot sell or transfer their investment before a
period of five years thal has expired on Oclober 10, 2005, Thereafter, such saie / transfer would be subject to the prior
approval of the SBP. However these shares are still appearing as frozen as no approval has been obtained by the Bank o
unfreaze these shares.

7.4 This includes provision for impairment on account of adoption of IFRS 9, as more fully explained in note 4.1.2.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

8.1

8.2

8.3

Note  (Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
ADVANCES e RUpEES |0 "000)
Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc.
In Pakistan 494 582,521 413,891,656
Outside Pakistan 137 551,531 143,317,174
632,574,052 557.208.830
Islamic financings and related assels 233 21,528,821 22,200,806
Bills discounted and purchased
Payable in Pakistan 20,987,019 21,115,250
Payable oulside Pakistan 48977909 48,027,549
69,964,928 67,142,799
Advances - gross 724,067,801 645,552,435
Provision against advances
Specific 81 {44.601.969)  (38,734,988)
General 8.2 (4,336,374) (3,255,254)
Advances - nel of provision 675,129,458 604,562,193

Advances include Rs, 58,026,380 milion (December 31, 2017: Rs. 51,072 827 million) which have been placed under non-
parforming status as detailed below:

Jurse 30, 2018 {Un-audited)

Category of Classified advances Provigian requined Prowision hald
Clasaification Domestic  Dwerseas Taital Domestic  Dwerseas Taksl Domestic Owerseas Total
(Rupees in "000)
(e assats sapacialy
mantioned” 90,306 - 90,308 4432 - 4432 4412 - 4432
Substandand 21603 2223350 446458 553,002 BI3T58 1.067.550 553,802 513,158 1,067 660
Doubthd 575,142  2TMIN 330932 285550 1296005 1501861 285553 1.216.268 1,501,861

Loss 24 852 23,205 181 48 161788 23822 18205731 42028018 23 832 a5 18205731 42 028,016
77 760630 28,256,751 56, P4 66612 10,035 757 44,601 24,566,212 10,835 157 44,501,?155

Decamber 31, 2017 {Audited)

Category of Classified advances Provision requined Provislon held
Classification Domestic  Dvirseas Taital Domestic  Dwerseas Tatal Domestic Cwersnas Tetal
[Rupees in "000)

Other a5sets especialy

minticned” B1853 : B1553 2mz - 2mz2 2mz2 . 2mz
Sutistandard 1052286 4208307 5271593 258,707 BO3453 1062180 258,707 803453 1,062,160
Doubtful 1452224 6517005 706022 THIB04 2308554 3002458 TB3.B04 2,308 654 3092 458
Loss _ 5536350 12153000 ATS0352 O MSI2TIS 10065583 MSTEIS MSHLTES 10,0855, 563 34,578,358

23_12 Eﬂ- %.3!1 51072827  D5E5TR0E 13177630 3BTMABE 25557298 1@ 33.?31&

* The oifeet assets especially mentioned calegory perians io agricitiural finance and advancss o small enlarprses,

General provision represents provisicn amounting to Rs. 275.974 milllon (December 31, 2017: Rs. 247.323 million) against
consumer finance portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP and Rs. 4,002,515 million
{Decernber 31, 2017: Rs. 2,630.143 million) pertaining to overseas advances to meet the requirements of the regulatory
autharities of the respeclive countries in which the overseas branches operate and on account of adoption of IFRS 9, as
more fully explained in note 4.1.2. General provision also includes Rs. nil (December 31, 2017: Rs, 328.700 million) which
is based on regulatory instructions. Further, the Bank caries provision of Rs. 57 B85 million (December 31, 2017: Rs.
449 088 million) as a matter of prudence based on management estimatas,

The Bank has availed the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) of certain morigaged properties held as collateral against non-
performing advances as allowed under BSD Circular 1 of 2011. Had the benefit under the said circular not been taken by
the Bank, the specific provision against non-performing advances would have been higher by Rs, 22,020 million (December
31, 2017; Rs, 24,540 million). The FSV benefit availed is not aveilable for the distribution of cash or stock dividend to
shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note (Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
a, OPERATING FIXED ASSETS ~—————{Rupees in '000}——

Capital work-in-progress 2,029,329 4 420,500
Property and aquipmant 44,320,929 40,797 947
Intangible assats 1,340,780 G86,117
2.1 47,691,035 46,204,564

9.1 Additions and disposals during the period amounted to Rs, 2,797.997 million {June 30, 2017: Rs. 3,764.312 million) and
Rz, 347.388 milion (June 30, 2017: Rs. 130.803 million), respectively.

{Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
10. BORROWINGS ~em—eee{ RUpeas in '000)
Secured
Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan under:
Export refinance scheme 17,496,702 19,375,930
Refinance facility for modemization of SME 5,600 10,250
Long term financing facility 21,208,295 17,312 481
38,710,597 36,698 661
Repurchase agreement bormowings 177,610,678 450,480,788
Bal Muajjal payable to other financial instilutions 34,936,848 -
251,258,122 487,188,459
Unsecured
Call borrowings 10,452,472 9,713,596
Cverdrawn nosira accounts 597,108 1,196,470
Trading labilites 4 271645 -
Other borrowings 26,860,098 14,551,940

42,181,321 25,462,006
283,439,443 512,650,455

11. DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers
Fixed deposits 272,224 881 318,615,028
Savings deposits 409,727,535 385,426,820
Sundry deposits 39,498,128 20,461,274
Margin deposils 8,575,469 5488 869
Current accounts - remunerative 6,287,009 5,890,387
Current accounts - non-remunerative 526,146,659 471,084 661

1.262 470,671 1,215,967,039
Financial Institutions

Remunerative deposils 34,852 697 56,802,291
Mon-reamunerative deposits 18,039,283 16,477,821
52,891,980 73,280,212

1.315.362 651 1,269,247 251
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

12.

121

12.2

13.

131

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF DEFERRED TAX

Surplus / {deficit) arising on revaluation of assels - net of tax:
Fixed assets [ Non-banking assats
Available for sale securities

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assels as at January 1

Transferred to retained eamings consequent to the change in accounting
policy - refer note 4.1.1

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets as at January 1

Revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets during the period [ year

Exchange adjustments

Revarsal on disposal of non banking assets

Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental depreciation
charged during the pericd ! year - nel of deferred tax

Related deferred tax liability on Incremental depreciation charged during the
period [ yaar

Less: Related deferred tax lability on:
Revaluation as at January 1
Revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets during the period [ year
Exchange adjustments
Reversal on dispozal of non banking assets
Incramantal depreciation charged during the period [ yaar

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of available for sale securities

Markel Treasury Bills

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Listed shares

REIT Investment

Term Finance Certificates, Sukuks, other bands, etc.
Foreign bonds

Related deferred tax

CONTINGEMNCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Direct credit substitutes

Contingent labilities in respect of guarantees given favouring:
Government
Banking companies and other financial institutions
Others

Mote

121
12.2

{Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, Dacamber 31,
2018 2017
Restated
e Rupes in "000)
26,024,598 26,077,182
(1,639,465) 6,228,784
24,385,133 32,305,968
26,849,365 20,286.217
- 241,585
26,845 365 20,527 802
. 6,399,394
1.408 {an)
(38,875) -
{28.230) {50,566)
(15,201) (27,228)
{80.898) 6,321,563
26,768 467 26,849,365
772,183 582,889
= 216,535
493 {13)
(13,606) -
{15.201) {27 228)
743,869 772,183
26,024,598 26,077,182
{Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
~————{Rupees in "000)
{5.799) [3,084)
(2.878,539) 6,285,489
2,511,505 1,780,418
9211 -
(140,240) 28475
{2,088,301) 1,491,387
{2,522,253) 9,582,745
BE2, 78R (3.353.961)
{1,639,465) 6,228,784
19,715,755 15,500,693
1,230,600 929,470
5,452,996 5,425,848
26,399,351 21,856,011
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

13.2

133

13.4

13.4.1

13.4.2

1343

(Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
e RUpees in "000 =
Transaction-related contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities in respect of performance bonds, bid bonds, warranties,
etc. given favouring:

Government 105,007,174 128,096 424
Banking companies and other financial institutions 7.217,265 B.408 147
Others 50,802.041 57,086,219

163,026,480 193,590,790

Trade-related contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilifies in respect of letters of credit opaned favouring:

Government 74,579,065 74,060,985
Cithers 141,300,310 112,328,937
215,879,375 186,389,922

Other contingencies
Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 12.074.075 12,743,798

These mainly represent counter claims filed by the borrowers for restricting the Bank from disposal of assets (such as
martgaged [ pledged assels kept as security).

Based on legal advice and / or intermal assessments, management is confident that the matters will be decided in the
Bank's favour and the possibility of any outcome against the Bank is remote and accordingly no provision has been made
in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

Panalties amounting to Rs. 4.058 billion have been levied by the FE Adjudication Court of the State Bank of Pakistan
relating to alleged contraventions of the requirements of forelgn exchange regulations with respect to issuance and
cerlification of E-Forms by the Bank to certain customers (Exporters) who failed lo submit the export documents
thereagainst, consequently Foreign Exchange on account of Export Proceeds hawve not been repatriated. The Bank
maintains that it fully discharged its liability, in accordance with the law and has filed a civil suil in the High Court of Sindh
challenging the levy of the penalty. The High Courlt has granted a stay on action being taken against the Bank. The
management, based on the advice from legal counsel, is confident that the view of the Bank will prevail and the Bank will
not be exposed o any loss on this account.

United Bank Limited Yemen ("UBL") issued two Standby Letters of Credit (SBLCs) for USD 12 million (Ris. 1,458 million)
and USD 13 millign (Rs. 1,578 millien) in favour of Ministry of Qil and Minerals, Yemen (MOM) against the counter SBLCs
of a foreign bank. In March 2015, the counter parly to the underlying performance agreement notified MOM of suspension
of the SBLCs due to force majeura. In September 2015, MOM filed a law suil against UBL at the Preliminary Commercial
Court in Sana'a, Yemen claiming payment of both SBLCs for the total sum of USD 25 million (Rs. 3,037 million).

During 2016, no major debate was held as all hearings of the commercial case were adjourned to subsequent dates, due to
gither non-appearance of legal counsel of MOM or non-submission of responses by MOM, as required by legal counsel of
UBL. As per provisions of Yemeni procedural law, il 60 days lapse from the tasl hearing without the case being
reinitiatedfollowed up by the plaintiff, the casa shall be considered as if not filed and all proceduras have to be re-initiated
afresh. In light of the foregoing provision of law, and non-follow up by MOM for over 60 days, UBL counsel submitted a
maotion (o dismiss the case. On Seplember 25, 2017 the Honourable judge presiding over the commercial case filed by
MOM against UBL in Yemen accepled UBL's motion to drop the case, In light of the foregoing, the case filed by MOM
against UBL in Yemen stands dismissed. Although the case against UBL Yemen has been dismissed by the Honourable
judge, the said dismissal is on the basis of a procedural lapse by MOM in pursuing the case, and not on the actual merits.
Hence MOM can reinitiate the case against UBL afresh.

The ICC Award has also been annocunced whereby ICC has accepled the request of counter party lo declare Force
Majeure as per the terms of the Production Sharing Agreement (PSA) between Reliance and MOM, In terms of the ICC
Award, the PSA stands cancelled.
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13.4.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

13.8

138

13.10

Based on the legal advice of the Bank’s legal counsel in Yemen and in view of facts surrounding the matter, management
is of the view that it Is unlikely that there will be any financial impact on the Bank.

United Bank Limiled and its New York Branch (NY Branch) have entered into a written agreement (WA 2018) with the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York (FRENY) effective 2 July 2018 upen termination of the earlier written agreement
entered into on 28 October 2013 (WA 2013). This agreement was entered based on the findings of FRBNY in their most
recent examination of NY Branch.

The WA 2018 directs UBL to lake measures to strengthen the risk management and compliance function, corporate
governance and oversight, compliance with Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) / Anli Money Laundering (AML) compliance, Customer
Due Difigence and Suspicious Activity Moniforing and Reporling Program within the stipulated timelines. Bank is
undertaking all steps o further strengthen its Compliance Framework to fully comply with the WA 2018. While the Bank
seeks to comply with all the requirements, and al this stage there is no indication of any financial impact, it is not possible
o ascertain the eventual oulcome of these matters.

For contingencies relating to taxation, refer note 18,
Commitments to extend credit

The Bank makes commitments 1o extend credit in the normal course of its business but these being revocable
commitments do not attract any significant penalty or expense if the facility is unilaterally withdrawn,

(Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,

Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts _._.._fﬂ?gums in 'Wi?v“—l—
Purchase 251,883,299 210,187 425
Sale 205,117,261 180,864,234
Commitments in respect of derivatives

Interest rale swaps 2,827,752 4,358,641
FX options - purchased 108,750 83,368
FX options - sold 109,750 83,368
Forward purchase of Govermment securities 1.053.275 7.870.890
Forward sale of Govarnmaent securities - 1,478
Commitments In respect of capital expenditure 1,877,773 1,887 978

UBL Bank (Tanzania) Limited (UBTL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of UBL (the Bank). The operating losses of UBTL in the
last two years along with the adverse exchange mavement in Tanzanian Shilling against Pak Rupee has resulted in a
significant decline in net assets value of the subsidiary. Its capital is below the regulatory requirement. Management of
UBTL has requested the Bank to inject additional capital and the Bank has approved capital injection of USD 9.4 million
(Rs. 1,142.074 million). The Bank, after obtaining regulatory approval procaess for transfer of funds for capital injection, has
injected USD 4.4 milllon (Rs. S08.992 million) in the current period. UBTL, is in process of obtaining approvals from its
central bank for allowing it to increase authorized capital by USD 4.4 millien.

As at December 31, 2017, the Bank has also provided a comfort letter to the management of UBTL confirming its financial
and operational support. Management expects UBTL to confinue o operate as a going concem.
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14,

15.

16.

MARHK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to customers

On lendings to financial institutions
Call money lendings
Repurchase agreement lendings
Other lendings to financial institutions

On investments In
Held for trading securities
Available for sale securities
Held to maturity securities

O deposits with financial institutions

MARK-UP /| RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

On dgpm;itﬁ

O securities sold under repurchase agreements
On other shor term borrowings

On long term borrowings

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances elc.

Charge for compensated absences
Medical expenses

Contribution to defined contribution plan
Charge in respect of defined benefit obligations
Rent, taxes, insurance, aleciricity elc,
Deprecialion on oparating fixed assels
Depreciation on |slamic financing against leased assels (ljarah)
Amaortization

Outsourced senvice charges including sales commission
Communications

Banking service charges

Cash transportation charges

Stationary and printing

Legal and professional charges
Adverisement and publicity

Repairs and maintenance

Travelling

Office running expenses

Vehicle expenses

Entertainment

Cartage, freight and conveyance
Insurance expansa

Auditors’ remunaration

Training and seminars

Brokerage expensas

Subscriptions

Donations

Mon-executive Directors’ fees

Zakat paid by overseas branch
Mizscellaneous expenses
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{Un-audited)
January - January -
Juna 2018 June 2017
~———{Rupees in "000}———

19,731,932 15,484 923
165,566 99,392
286,940 217,083
696,283 780,405
1,148,789 1,096,880
1,628,165 685,765
16,724,745 17,531,294
14,548 663 14,764,775
32,801,573 32,981,834
382,515 118,464
54,164,809 49,683,101
16,452 868 15,384 482
7.940,034 5,254,604
1,460,693 798,904
246,637 230,358
26,109,232 21,668,388
6,696,175 6,200,286
64,120 149,359
388,384 355,086
151,808 129,569
201,868 180,295
2,288,412 2 257,005
1,116,336 992 052
86,272 97,272
216,038 163,955
2,432,513 2,442 57T
758,686 602,312
788,642 555,229
514,353 347 202
361,071 329,249
389,935 306,230
343,332 448 468
832,557 784,608
118,285 134 472
220,796 281,749
84,936 90,004
BB.0T9 107,803
39,198 47,165
459 847 50,325
45 662 38,166
59,746 63,972
8,568 14,411
51,245 43,392
3.768 750
37,149 20,981
23,755 49,461
16,177 33,400
18,516,714 17,316,904




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
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17.

18.

19.

191

EXTRAORDINARY / UNUSUAL ITEM - ACCRUAL IN RESPECT OF PENSION LIABILITY

The extraordinary charge of Rs. 8.4 Billion represents the estimated amount of the cost of pension payable as per
Honorable Supreme Court's Order increasing the minimum pension o Rs. 8,000 per month subject to 5% annual increase
from January 1, 2018. Estimate is based on on-going life verification of both pensioners and retrenched employees, The
estimate is also based on the payment of pension without taking effect of commutation. The Bank has sought clarification
from the Honorable Supreme Court on the effect of commutation in calculation of minimum pensicn and the treatment of ex-
employees who were separaled under the Golden Handshake Scheme described as Retrenchment Scheme of 1997, The
amount will be adjusted based on the guidance received from the Honorable Supreme Court.

TAXATION

The Income Tax retumns of the Bank have been filed up to the tax year 2017 (accounting yvear ended December 31, 2018)
and were deamed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance) unless amended by
the Commissioner of Infand Revenue.

The income lax authorities have issued amended assessment orders for the lax years 2003 1o 2017, and crealed additional
tax demands (including disallowances of provisions made prior to Seventh Schedule) of Rs.12,608 million (December 31,
2017: Rs.12,928 million) , which have been fully paid as required under the law. The Bank has filed appeals before the
various appellate forums against these amendments. Where the appellate authorities have allowed relief on cerlain issues,
the assessing authorties have filed appeals befora higher appellate forums. Where the appellate authorities have not
allowed relief the Bank has filed appeals bafore higher appellate forums. The management of the Bank is confident that the
appeals will be decided In favour of the Bank.

The tax retlums for Azad Kashmir (AK) and Gilgit Balfistan {GB) Branches have been filed upto the tax year 2017 (financial
year 2016) under the provisions of section 120{1) read with section 114 of the Qrdinance and in compliance with the terms
of the agreement between banks and the Azad Kashmir Council in May 2005. The returns filed are considered as deemed
assessmant orders under tha law.

The tax authorilies have also carried out monioring for Federal Excise Duty, Sales tax and withholding taxes covering
perod from yvear ended 2007 to 2016. Consequently various addbacks and demands were raised crealing a lotal demand
of Rs. 920 millon (December 31, 2017: Rs. 919 milion). The Bank has fled appeals agalnst all such demands and is
confident that these would be decided in the favour of the Bank.

The tax returns for UAE, Yemen and Qatar branches have been filed upto the year ended December 31, 2017 and for USA
branch upto the year ended December 31, 2016 under the provisions of the laws prevalling in the respective countries, and
are deemed as assessed unless opened for reassessment.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held 1o maturity, is based on quoted markel price. Quoted
securiies classified as held to maturity are camied at cost. The falr value of ungquoted equily securities, other than
investments in associates and subsidiaries, is delermined on the basis of the break-up value of these investments as per
their latest available audited financial statemants,

The fair value of unquoted debl securifies, fixed term loans, olher assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and
borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and active market for these assels
and liabilities and raliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.

In the opinion of the managemant, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilites are not significantly different
from their carrying values since these are elther short-term in nalure or, in the case of customer loans and deposils, are
frequently repriced.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measuremants.

Lewvel 1: Fair value measuraments using quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Leval 1 that are chsarvable for the
assals or lability, either directly (I.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measuremants using inpul for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobsarvabla inputs).
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The table below analyses financial ingtruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fair value
- Inwastmants
Govemmani Secunfies (Thilis, PIBs, GoP Sukuks
and Eurobonds)
Foreign Bonds - Sovereign
Foraign Bonds - others
Oedinary shares of listed companies
Diebd securiies (TFCs)
Irvesstment in REIT

Financial assets not measwred at fair value
- Invesiments (HTM, unlisted ordinary shanes,
preference shares, subsidiaries and associates)

O balance sheet financial Instruments

Foremrd purchase and safe of foreign exchangs confracts
Inkerest rate swaps

FX oplions - purchased and soid

Forward purchase of govemment securilies

Forward sale of govemment securilies

On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assots measured at fair value
= Invesiments
Gavamment Sacurities (Thigs, PIBz, GoP Sukuks
and Eunbonds)
Foreign Bonds - Sovereign
Foraign Bonds - others
Owdinary shares of listed companies
Deba securities (TFCs)
Irrvesstment in REIT

Financial assets not measured at fair value
= Invastmants (HTM, unistad andinary sharas,
preference shares, subsidianes and associates)

Of batance sheet financial Instruments.

Forward puchase and sale of foreign exchangs confracts
Inferes! rale swaps

FX oplions - purchased and sold

Forwand purchese of govemment securiies

Forward sale of govemmend securilies
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June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Carrying | Fair value
Notional value Leval 1 Lovel 2 Lavel 3 Total
{Rupees in ‘000)

412,749,481 . 412,748,481 412740 481

20,815 550 z 29,815,550 20,815,559
7,040,043 2 7,040,043 740,043
17,780,575 17.780.575 . 17,780,575
584,073 - 534,073 554,073
537,501 537,80 - 537,801

456 517 532 18318376 450,109,156 68,517 532

331,254 B43 - - -
799,772,375 18318376 450,199,156 468,517 532

457,000,660 2 1518,888 1,818,688

2827 752 - 26160 ZE. 160
710,500 r : .
053215 - 13.916] @.018)
December 31, 2017 {Audited)
Carrying / Fair valus
Netional value Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total
{Rupees in '000)

677,712,880 E 677,712,990 77,712,890
26,301 802 - 26,301 802 26,301,802
10,579,141 . 10,579,141 10,579,141
18,318,645 18,316,646 - 18,318,646

372,265 F 372265 372,265

458,500 458,590 - 458,580

TH 4348 TB177.26 714,906,198 73743434
358,043,162 o - -

1,091, THE 626 18,777,236 714,965,196 T3, 743434

391.@.559 1473607 1473687

1,550,641 74,055 4855
166,13 - .

7 270,880 E T8 T1.155)

1478 ] v}




NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

19.2

19.3

20.1

Certain categories of operating fixed assets (land and buildings) and non-banking assets acquired in satisfactions of claims
are carried at revalued amounts (level 3 measurement) determined by professional valuers based on their assessment of
the market valuas.

Valuation techniques usad in determination of fair values within level 2 and leval 3.

Dabt Securities

Tha fair value of Federal Governmenl securities is determined using the prices [ rates available on Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) and the fair value of other corporate and foreign government securities is determined
using the rates from Reuters / Bloomberg.

Derivatives

The fair valuation lechnigues include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations.

Operating fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims

Land, buildings and non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims are revalued on a periodic basis wsing
professional valuers. The valuation is based on thelr assessment of the market value of the assets. The effect of changes
in the uncbservable inpuls used in the valuaticns cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly, a qualitative disclosure
of sensitivity has not been presented in these unconsalidated condensed intarim financial statements,

RISK MANAGEMENT

The SBP has introduced two liquidity standards through its guidelines on Basel IIl; Liquidity Standards, These are the
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Met Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). The cbjective of LCR is to ensure that Banks have
an adequale stock of unencumbered high quality fiquid assets (HQLA) to survive a significant stress scenario. The

objective of NSFR is to reduce funding risk over a longer time horizon by requiing Banks to fund their activities with
sufficiently stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis.

(Unaudited) {Unaudited) {Audited)
June 30, March 31, December 31,
2018 2018 207

Total Adjusted Value
(Rupees in "000)

Liquidity Coverage Ratio
Total HQLA 301,016,572 395,007,330 414,579,250
Total Net Cash Dutflows 219,245,849 230,129,188 255,636,947
Liguidity Covarage Ratio (%) 178.35% 171.65% 162.18%
Minimum Requirement (%) 50.00% 80.00% 50.00%
{Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
emeee Total Waighted Value
e (Rupees in "000)
Met Stable Funding Ratio
Total Available Stable Funding (ASF) 1.528,770,648 1.128.,634,708
Total Required Stable Funding (RSF) 1.132,557.955 1.086,955,085
Net Stable Funding Ratio (%) 134.98% 103.83%
Minimurn Requirement (%) 100.00% 100.00%
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

21. SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Total incoma

Total axpenses

Prof / (lcss) bafore tax
Sagmean] relurn on assels [ROA)
Sagmen cost of funds

Total income

Toll axpenses

Profit { (less) bafora tax
Sagment raturn on asseds (ROA)
Sagment cost of funds

‘Sagmen! assels (pross of NPL provisions)
Saegmeant non perfonming koans (NPLs)
Segmenl provisaon held against NPLs
Begmen Eabilities

Sogman assels [(ross of NPL provisions)
Segment nan peranming kans (NPLs)
Sagment proviskn held against NPLs
Segmen Eabiities

For the six months ended June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Corporate  Trading and Ratall Commaercial ot Infer segment
finance sales banking banking alimination
(Rupees in "000)
444 287 14,5365 868 1881821 BIT07 1,671,263
{50, 643) (Baggamyl | (15627.792)) | (59228600 | (8172.263)
ATT Ea4 13,586,721 3,201,439 B4T.257 || (7.501.000)
135.6% 12% 0.3% 0.2% =
1.0% 5.2% 2.4% 4%
For the six months anded June 30, 2017 (Un-audited)
Corporste  Trading and Rertall Commercial A Inter segment
finance sales banking banking elimination
(Rupees In "000)
108,362 16,305,792 15,604,813 6,697, 7d4 1,643,806
{28,162} (494.827)|| (14,008.272)| (17668800 | (1,089.379)
BO,220 15,810,965 1,565,541 4,930,864 654,427
3B.1% 21% 0.2% 1.3%) -
2.1% 4. 5% 2.6% J.5%) -
As at June 30, 2018 | Un-awdited)
Corporate  Trading and Ratali Commarcial o Inter sogment
finance Bales banking banking elimination
{Rupees in "000)
518,635 || B44 149,183 | |1,102,525.381 | |663.265633 | 156,320,349 (@07.823,578)
- 526,845 6,279,133 48,870,311 50,101 =
- BOO.021 5,790,128 37985722 26,097 -
288,274 || BIT.0NE.968 | |1,085172.371 | |625,060,7A2 || 14.910.211 (907 B23,578)
As at December 31, 2017 (Audited)
Corporate Trading and Retail Commercial Others Inter segment
financa sales banking banking elimination
(Rupees in "000)
1,340,731 | [1.191.478,552 | |1.218,452,821 | |590.868,153 | | 138,603,863 (1,004,726 BBE)
674,163 1,003,160 6,883,150 || 40,435,757 66,591
515,863 1,002,844 TAB4T41 || 20,995 451 32,089 -
222 650 | |1,166.049,750 | 11,200,340,738 || 556,507,822 || 10,600,018 (1,004,726, 656)

Segment assets and abiltles Include inter segment balances.

Transactions between reportable segments are based on an appropriate ransfer pricing mechanism using agreed rates.

22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bank has relaled party relationships with its associales, subsidiary companies, employea benafil plans and its direclors
and executive officers (including their associates).

The Bank enlers inlo transactions with related parties in the normal course of business, Contributions to and accruals in
respect of staff retirement benefits and other benefit plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of
the confribution plan, Remuneration to the executives ! officers is determined in accordance with the lerms of their

appointment.

Details of transactions with related parties during the period, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in
thesa unconsalidated condensed interim financlal statements, are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Batancis with hanks
I cervent dciounts.
I deposil sotounis

Landings 1o inancial institions

Opening batanos
Ivaresimant made during e poriod | year
Irveestment redeamad | disposed off during the

Opening balance
Bormowings during the pedod | yoar
Setfiad during the percd | year
Caosing batance

Dvercraem Nostn

Deposits and ot stcounts
Opening Laiance
IReesvad duning the perniod | yaer
Wimrgwn duning the pericd | year
Trairestor in | joeet) - rnt

Closing balance

Drser Lisbilties

FrlREE M- Ddyatis on caposts and Demoesngs

Payable i 518% rotreman fund
Linaameed i

Contingencies and Commitments
Letier of quisaniee

Formerd fofeign emchangs sondrcts. purthase
Forastd fonson echangs Conacls sak
(Ceness Cumancy Swaps

Whark-up | refum / inberesd samed
{hmmfd‘ugﬂmnd

et g on sbe ol securiles
Diner income

IAarki-up { retum / inferes] epensa

IPost mpbrymment benelts
Non-axacative Srechors” e

el charg for cednes conlritution pians
et charga for defined benolit plans:
Other aupensas

Iresurande premium paid
Frerrance ciima sefied

A il Juns 5, 2018 {Un-audied) s at December 34, 2017 [Asdited)

Crhar retated bay

iy Cther mlated
Directors  managemaent Subsidaries  Associates Directors " Subsidaries  Assock
parnonsa| gl gl i
-{Rupsts in ‘000]
- 1439585 . . - - B28 843 .
- 3 - - - - 2ASOETA -
P— v — . ———
e —
- - ki) 078
— .
- ABHTIT4 nEMNT 3 4paT AT B MBS m
508,962 15, T8 a0 ] 12T
108 758 47 370 . . . {4,217 804} .
- - E ) eI iR
10412 98,414 13,412 . A1
5303 132559 - LI 15,106 235 B2 285040 18607 R
4501 08,344 . . BE1, 143 11,574 (ke ] - 5,331 4
(57060 = 2 (ara} (BB (rAn = (MRS
= A0 : 2 g {14 BES) . 1
Tﬁﬁf - PRERE) maﬁl SN0 taihe 7,185,140 z‘aﬁiﬁl
215,148 2,156,148
- 1531 - 55,106 = g 132 - 82071
+ f 5 B . . s . BIZB08
- . 120,550 - - - - 172 -
= 45 55 5 4 v = 2 = r
- 1A FAT] 30,184 . . RET -] ER T e
- - - 30,184 . - - - 30164
1328813 ATa SR . B34 . BT, 100
S4E1TE 234N 43,200 AEOTS ATa 532 512850
e (3251) (280820} ) C - (2415684 = 1675, 750)
SRY ] - 300 - Y ST )] -
e—— E—— -
13,458
5,700,563 WAE  ATOTH! TAZIAM 30GETED 74425 VRUME  ZOSSES BERIEN RWRII2
3150007  EIRZA0  BEEIASY  BSASS1%0 BAIMETZ  M0AKEN 14N BT MOTHMST  TPGIBM4T
(HL026.385)  (TTL389) (BATIATH wl?zl!ﬁﬁr [HM-"JB} ARG 15027 MFN (255,237 200} (174752255

i1 18 (1187 352505 10821
f 1]

6375 5 a8 WIE 18438 0412 &t 1459 azgn o0
X ¥ ; - BAnEE : L : . 17280
o] - 4585 - - 503 - 11862
Z TATS 15,210 3 ‘ - 0858 T
- 2060431 2 . - - LTEEEN -

2080452 % = L2 ZT60A30

For the Six manihe snded June 34, 3018 fUn-susited) Fw thw Six monti ended June 30, 2017 (Un-sedited)

Key Foy
b . L Ohar related o . P R Other retated
perspr| persornel L
Fupess in 000]

. 4 55T 48,301 i 55,108 A 2539 32 o548 208 0FR
L] e 5283 E25H 6542 4 7] 543 25 et 13,069
. - 321350 4,813 AT - 1260 9837 385605

- - 18451 18568 - 212072 .
- 56.000 ras 6ET - B35 8,055 B25
408871 663 28274 5130 4353 53T 622 20083 167,031 16,534

= 45300 = = - E 584,175 - - E

E 10.%80 . = = 13524

g = o = = 205 - =
; E . . 151,306 . : . . 129,56
3 i i BATE A% 2 F . § 5530
= 1.861 . i1 578 B B a 7.0 [T ]

MBS - - - . 542
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

23. ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

231 The Bank operates 93 (December 31, 2017: 93) Islamic Banking branches and 156 (December 31, 2017: 156) Islamic
Banking windows. The statemeant of financial position of the Bank's Islamic Banking branches as at June 30 is as follows:

Mote {Un-audited) {Auditad)
June 30, Dacembaer 31,
2018 a7
seemeeescees (Rupees in '000) e
ASSETS
Cash and balances with treasury banks 6,462,822 5,428,040
Balances with other banks 6,666,953 6,551,518
Due from financial institutions 17,700,000 3,694,215
Investmenis 26,770,063 25,401,968
Islamic financing and related assets 233 21435439 22,110,626
Operating fixed assais an.orz 299,950
Other assels 486,779 421,843
Total Assets 79,853,128 63,908,160
LIABILITIES
Bills payable 374,637 400,973
Due to financial institutions 125.000 1.500,000
Deposits and other accounts
Current accounts - non remunerative 30,076,823 25,163,438
Currant accounts - remunerative 1,106,979 1,293,692
Saving accounts 12,578,721 11,839,659
Term deposits 8,811,270 982,345
Deposits from financial institutions - remunerative 22 596,538 20,462,360
Deposits from financial institutions - non remunerative 36422 34,505
75,306,753 58,775,999
Due lo Head Offica 1.732.266 61,035
OCther liabilities 347,792 327,658
77.BE6.448 62,065,665
MET ASSETS 1,866,680 1,842,495
REPRESENTED BY
|zlamic Banking Fund 2,181,000 2,181,000
Accumulated losses (73,150} (362,502)
2.107.850 1,818,498
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assels (141.170) 23,997
1.966.680 1,842,495
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FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

23.3

234

The profit and loss account of the Bank’s Islamic Banking branches for the six months ended June 30 is as follows:

Return eamed
Return expensed

Provision against loans and advances - net
MNet return after provisions

Other Income

Fea, commission and brokerage income

Gain / (loss) from dealing in foreign curmencies
Loss on sale of securities - net

Other income

Total ather income

Other Expenses

Administrative expenses

Other provisions - net

Total other expenses

Net profit for the period
Accumulated losses brought forward
Accumulated losses carried forward

Remuneration to Shariah Board and Advisor

Islamic financing and related assets

Financings

Murabaha

Musharaka running finance

ljarah

Istamic Export Refinance scheme-Murabaha
Diminishing Musharaka

Advances

Advances against ljarah

Advances for Diminishing Musharaka
Advances for Murabaha

Profit and other receivables against financings and advences

Gross Islamic financing and related assets
Provizgion against financings and advances

Charity Fund

Opening Balance

Addition during the period / year
Payments during the period / year
Closing Balance

———{Un-audited)--—
January - June January-June
2018 2017
wmmaneees (RUpEES 10 "D00) —eeemaae
1.918,137 1,262 821
(926.903) {808,513}
991,234 454,308
{3,202) (1,161}
988,032 453,147
68,162 44 459
218 {3549
= (438)
11,760 7,830
80,141 51,492
1.068,173 504,639
(776,014} {430,278)
(2,807) {1
(778,821) (430,279)
289,352 74,360
{362.502) (6049,289)
(73,150) (534,929)
3.724 3,386
(Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
e (RUPEEE IN "D00) e
543,620 720,017
- 15,000,000
386,934 490,963
126,849 -
18,874,225 4,358,154
20,031,628 20,569,134
126,576 53,539
885,170 1,255,734
64,460 88,165
1.076.206 1,397 438
420,987 234,234
21,528,821 22,200,806
(93,382) {90,180)
21,435,439 22,110,626
121 648
1,256 93
- {1.320)
1,377 121
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

24, NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Directors in its meating held on August 02, 2018 has declared an interim cash dividend in respect of the
quarter ended June 30, 2018 of Rs. 3.0 per share (June 30, 2017; Rs. 3.0 per share). The unconsolidated condensed
interim financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2018 do not include the effect of appropriations which will ba
accounted for subsaquent 1o the perod end,

25, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These unconsofidated condensed interim financial statements wera authorised for issue on August 02, 2018 by the Board
of Directors of the Bank.

26. GENERAL
26.1 Comparatives

Comparative information has been reclassified, rearmanged or additionally incorporated in these unconsolidated condensed
interim financial statemenis for the purposes of better presentation.

26.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

A i Mo /L. —
,ﬁ?f’,{efn(( 2 '&5——-‘@ W bttt
Aameet Karachiwalla Slma Kamil Amar Zafar Khan Arshad Ahmed Mir Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, OBE, HPK

Chiel Financial Officer President & Director Director
Chiel Executive Officer Chairman
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances wilh other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investments

Advances

Oparating fixed assets

Deferred tax asset - net

Other assets

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Subordinaled loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax liability - mat

Other liabilities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY
Share capital
Resenves
Unappropriated profit

Total equity attributable to the equity holders of the Bank

Mon-controfling interest

Surplus on revaluation of assels - net of deferrad lax

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Mote

0 m ~ o

10
1"

12

13

{Un-audited)
June 30,
2018

{Audited)
December 31,
2017
Restated

e (Rupees in "000) ==

165,569,967 161,119,170
40,968,344 35,549,112
43,689,293 35,893,920

B40.112,516 1.124,921,300

715,764,500 642,506,720
52,106,428 50,384,077

3,290,893 -
59,486,651 54,986,201
1,820,988,5592 2,105,360,500
15,568,285 13,392,978
299,943 198 517,082,159
1,395,836,645 1,366,157 914
11,602 4,375
- 2980 466
42 667 817 31,248 B46
1,754,027 .547 1,930,866,738
165,9&1,&45 1?4!493!T62
12,241,798 12,241,796
52,366,391 47,203,516
71.777.245 76,410,128
136,385,434 135,855,442
5,074,387 4,810,519

141,459,821 140,665,961
25.501.224 33,827 B01

166,961,045 174,493 762

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

e o)
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Aameet Karachiwalla Slma Kamil Amar Zafar Khan
Chiel Financial Cificer Director

President &
Chial Executive Olficer
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT (UN-AUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Mark-up ! return / interesl sarmed
Mark-up / return / inferest expensed
MNet mark-up / retum [ Interest income

(Provision) { reversal against loans and advances - net

Reversal of provision against lendings to financial
institutions - net

Provision for dimmution in value of investments - net

Bad debis written off directly

Met mark-up / retum § interest income after provisions

Non mark-up [ interest income

Fee, commission and brokerage Income
Dividend income

Incoma from dealing in foreign currencies
Gain on sale of securities - net

Unrealized (oss) / gain an revaluation of invesiments classified

as held for trading
Other income
Total non mark-up / interest income

Non mark-up | interest expenses
Administrative expenses

Other provisions §write affs - net
Workers' Welfare Fund

Other chargas

Total mon mark-up / interest expenses

Share of income of associates

Profit before extracrdinary / unusual item and taxation

Extraordinary [ unusual item - Accrual in respeact of
pansion liability

Profit before taxation
Tacation - Current
- Prior
= Deferrad
Profit after taxation
Attributable to:

Equity sharehoiders ol the Bank
MNon-controlling interest

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

Note

14
15

16

17

April-June April-June January - January -
2018 2017 June 2018 June 2017
(Rupees in "000)

27,103,838 26,636,796 56,158,142 51,305,607
{12.346,206) {11.914,110) (27,0056.623) (22 487,513)
14,757 542 14,722 686 29,062,519 28,618,094
(1,714,184) 453,089 {3,748,145) 306,834
64,549 7.260 122,149 8,260
(721,662} {137,480) (740,295) (188,828)
(26,185) {8,945/ (40,251) {24,020)
(2,397 482} 313,904 {4, 406,.542) 191,286
12,360,060 15,035,620 24,855,977 29,009,380
4,253,949 3,701,481 T.694.571 7.039,730
239,845 227 456 810,755 Tra.624
850,718 497 634 1,550, 144 859,935
1.511,614 1,597,643 4,735.514 3,996,614
(477) 8,133 {1,290) 2,490
211,792 225,198 372,849 415,390
7167 441 6,257 545 15,162,543 13,193,787
19,527,501 21,294,165 39,818,520 42,203,167
(10,752,822) (9,533,840)| | (20,262,638)( | (18,850,818)
(412,018) {13.320) (338,980) 2,508
(160,361) (243,197) (286,898) (478,128)
{3,587 (58,322} (4,018) (58,640)
{11,328 788) {9,848.679) _ (20,802 535) 19,385,080
8,198,713 11,445,488 18,925,985 22 B18,08T
115,481 132,807 300,412 370,024
8,314,194 11,578,003 18,226,397 23,188,111

(2,000,000) - (8404 635) -
6,314,194 11,578,083 10,821,762 23,188,111
(3,408,854) (4,366,463) (5, 700,657) {8,495,148)
(2,382) (459,532) (4.505) (459,532)
450,071 {1,038,014) 995 430 (342 574)
(2,962,165) {5,864,009) {4,709,742) (9,807, 354)
3,352,020 5,714,084 6,112,020 13,200,857
3,408,571 5,710,824 6,193,752 13,239,324
{56,542) {5,740) {81,732} 51,533
3,352 029 5,714,084 6,112,020 13,200,857
=
(Rupaes)
2.78 467 5.0 10.81

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an Integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial siatemants.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

April-June April-June January - January -
2018 2017 June 2018 June 2017
(Rupeas in "000)
Profit f (loss) after taxation for the period attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Bank 3,408,571 5.719.824 6,193,752 13,239,324
Mon-controlling interest |56, 542) {5,740) (81,732} 51,533
3,352,029 5,714,084 6,112,020 13,290,857
Other comprehensive income:
Htems that are not to be reclassified lo profit or loss
in subsequent penods - - -
Htems thal may be reclassified fo profit or loss in
subsequent perods
Exchange differences on translation of net investment in
foreign branches and subsidiaries
- Equity shareholders of the Bank 1,563,556 32,245 4517 404 260,089
- Non-controlling interest 26,112 194,455 345,250 256,427
1,589,668 226,700 4,862,654 516,516
1,589,668 226,700 4,862,654 516,516
Other comprehensive income transferred to equity 4,941 697 5,840,784 10,974 674 13,807,373
ftems that may be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent parfods
Deficit arising on revaluation of
available for sale securities (6, 964,508) (4.420,475) (13,425,591} (4,041,827)
Related daferrad tax raversal 2,379,450 1,557,130 4,997,508 1,586,308

{4,585,058)  (2,863,345) [8428,082) [2,445519)

Total comprehensive income during the period - net of tax 356,630 3077438 2,546,592 11,361,854

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these consclidated condensed interim financial statemeants.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

January - June January - June

2018 2017
[Rup in 000}
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tawation 10,821, 762 23,188,111
Less: Dividend income [B10,755) (779,624
Ghare of income of associates (300, 412) famn?_}_
8,710,585 22,038 463
Adjustmants:
Depreciation on operating fixed assels 1,182,446 1,047,670
Depreciation on Islamic financing against leased assots (larah) BE2TE ar.2ra
Amortizaton 253,870 185,074
Worknrs' Wolfare Fund 206,058 478,128
Prawision for retirement benafits 8,850, 960 372,306
Prowision for compinsated absences 84,120 149,359
Prowision ! (reversal) against loans and advances - met 3,748,145 (306, B34}
Reversal of provision against lendings 1o Tnancial insl@utions - net {122,149 (8,260}
Provigion for diminulion in value ol insesiments - mel 740, 295 188 888
Gain on sale of cperating fxed assets - nel (23,316) (25,827}
Gain on sale of jarah sssels - nel {1,301) {1,144
Unrealised loss £ (gain) on revaluation of investments classified as hold for frading 1,200 (2.490)
Bad debts written-oN directly 40,251 24,820
Diher provisions - ned 338,980 {2,508}
15,456,791 2,116,645
25,167 386 24,155,108
(Increase) / docrease in oporating assets = e
Landings 10 financinl instiutions (7.672,224) (2,054,508}
Held for trading securities 69,507 646 (20,426,035)
Advances (77.171,769) {62,960, 457)
Other assets (oxcluding advance taxation) (BET 879 (1,256 262}
(16, 195,226) (86,697, 350)
Increase [ (decrease) in operating lisbilities
Bits payable 2,175,307 5,826,480
Borrowangs [217.138,281) 184,058,889
Deposits and other accounts 200678, T31 81,6145, 1689
Other Eabditias (excluding current laxalion) 2577 Gb2 1,585 682
(182,708,961} 283,377,210
(173.734,801) 220,834,968
Paymasnis on account of stafl retinement bonofits [Ta1,468) {485,229)
Income taxes paid (8,172, 684) (13,037,960}
Met cash (oulllow) [ infiow from operating activilies {183.698,953) 207 301,778
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Nat investments in available for sale socuritins 172,614, 208 (155,807,911}
Mel investmanis in hald lo maturity securities 27,762,687 (26,482, 380)
Net investmanis in associales (BBE,608)| 3,003,475
Dividend ncome recehmed T18.418 BO0E.2
Investment in operating fixed assats (2,854,557} (3,803,836},
Sale procesds from disposal of operating fixed assets 33,958 AT B9
Sale procesds from disposal of farah assets 30,622 37,685
Mt cash infow | joullow) from investing aclivibes 1097 403,746 (182,412,582}
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Linbilities against assots subject to finance loase T.227 175
Dividends paid o
- Equily shareholders of the Bank {B.704 B45) {8,294 820}
= Mon-conbrofing intenest - {135,245}
Mel cash oulflow rom financang aclivilies {8,697 418) [B428 314}
5.007.375 16,480,983
Exchange differances on transiation of net investmsant in
foraign branches and subsidiares allributable to;
= Equity shareholders of tha Bank 4517 404 250,089
- Mon-contnoling Inbenest 345 250 256427
Incroaso in cash and cash equivalents during tho poriod 8,870,009 16,4977 408
Cash and cash equivalants et the beginning of the pariod 196 668 282 165,734 806
Cash and cash equivalents at the and of the pariod 206,538,311 182,712,305

The annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an Integral part of these consolidated condensed Interim financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Balance as at Janusry 1, 2017 [Audised)

Transacions with cwnars for B sl manths ended Jues 30, 2017
[Finat cash dividend - Decsmter 31, 216 deciand

subsaquant 1o the wear ond al RS 4.0 per shars
Irilertrs cashy dividiend - March 31, 2017 deciared af Rs.3.0 par sham

Total comgrahansin incoms far th six maoths ended Juns 3, 2017
Profil afier taxabon for $e shomanihs ended Juns 30, 2017

O compiahensive incomi - fel ol bix

Total comprshensive income lor he six months ended June 30, 2047
Cetinary dividend relating o Hon-oontrolisg shambolders

Traresler from surples on nevalsabon of fned asets 1o unappropraied
Dokt - nid of L

Transder o siuluony resenve:
Balance as at June 30, 30T {Un-audited)
Transaciions with ownars for fhe six months ended December X1, 2007

Iniprim cash dividond - Juna X0, 2007 declared at Rs. L0 per share
Inlorim cashy dividend - Septemier 30, 2017 declaned & Rs 3.0 por sham

Toital comprehansim incoms for the six months ended December 31, 2047

Proft afler tustion for tha six manths endied Docembar 31, 2N T

Owr compretansh incomae - et of

Tetal comprahansiva incoma for the ste months ended Decemzer 31, 2017
Cerinary dividiand ralatng in Hon-contmling shamhoidens

Temsstar from muapiss on mwvalastion of feed Bessls I Unappeoorialed
ot - e of e

Temesster 0 SEkADY PEanEE

Balance as at Decembar 31, 2017 as proviously reponted |Audited)

Change in accounting policy - mefer note £,1,1
Balanco as at Decembaer 31, 2017 (Restated)

Changm in accounting policy as 81 Janumry 1, 2018 - ndor note 4,1.2

Balance as at January 1, 2018 [Restated)

Trangscticns with cwners for the six montha ended Juss 30, 2018

Fnal cash dividend - Decemiber 31, 2117 declared subsequen i Be
yeur end ol Bs 4 [ per share

Inlerim i dividend - March 31, 2018 deciared af Rs 3.0 per sham

Total comprehensive incame for the six months ended June 3, 2018
Profit afier taxation for the six months enced June 30, 2018

Créwr oomprehensiv incoma « nel of

Total comprehensive incoma for the sin monta endod Jone X0, 2008

Transder from suphes on rovaksation of fined asseis o urappeopriaiod
profit - ned of tax

Trnesdar ty stabunny resenes

Balence &5 at Juna 30, 2018 {Un-audited)

bl :rm T T L ﬂhm
Capiial M-
Share | General | Stwhuiery | reserve- Subiotal | CoTtroNg | Total
Capital TESOrVe resarve | Exchangs prolil Intarest
w
{Fupesa in SO0}
12240758 1000 IT30085S 1531130 GESEA008 TEITRSOMM 4 2TED 1EBOEER
st (4BsTI9 {4,658 710
{572
[
I s
250055 L
HO0m 112,54
25,381 =3 M e
134414 (1304418
TR 00 BOSaTE 1SSTIEG  TZAWLMI TATRISA 4400007 1M,1502H

ETLSH]| RETREW) - BT
(5T T . B
(FIa500H] (75008 (7 345078

[FE- ) RFE T ] [oF I IREFE R E ]
1,736 o) 1

TiRGA0  ABGASED ROETOT 1507430

24 )

25,580 5,880 I ke

Laam 11.232,181) - =
12.241,768. 3000 ZBSTASY 173083 THESY. T  YEDETOZT 4810518 140,907 546
. " . s puss o
12241758 3000 ZRBSTASS 173083 TEAMIZH  TRSA55442  4B10.519 140,685,881
- . - - (1EA0S6]  (1BOSEY . [1Gd0SE)
12.2417,708 3000 BESTASY 17343085 TA,TEO565 TM.4ETS  4B10518 1S 3E

BE.TED)|  [4.BEGTIS) . (4836715
k] B . T

(B.560.258)  (B560.255) 8,550, 258)
6103752 | EHEATEE 1.!1.?-I£| B12020
- 4 517804 4 Bi3 B54

=)
- 4 517804

B193,762 10711158 2BIH18 10,974 574

s MasT £ ] Foliy

Tha annexed notes from 1 to 26 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed intarim financial statements,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
The Group consists of:

Holding Company
-~ United Bank Limited (the Bank)

Subsidiary Companies
- United Maticnal Bank Limited, United Kingdom {UBL LK) - 55% holding
. UBL {Switrerand) AG, Switzerland (USAG) - 100% halding
- UBL Bank {Tanzania) Limited, Tanzania (UBTL) - 100% holding
- United Execulors and Trustees Company Limited, Pakistan (UET} - 100% holding
- UBL Fund Managers Limited, Pakistan (UBLFM) - 88.87% holding
Al Ameen Financial Services (PvL.) Limiled [AFSL) - effective holding 98.87%

The Group 5 engaged in commercial banking, assel managemenl, investment advisory and invesiments business. United
Bank Limited {the Bank) Iz a banking company incorporated in Pakistan and is engaged in commercial banking and related
sarvices. The Bank's registered office and principal office are siluated at UBL Building, Jinnah Avenua, Blue Area, Islamabad
and at UBL Head Office, I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi respaectively, The Bank operates 1,363 ({December 31, 2017; 1,361)
branches inside Pakistan Including 93 (December 31, 2017: 93) Islamic Banking branches and 2 (December 31, 2017: 2)
branches in Expont Processing Zones, The Bank also operates 18 (December 31, 2017: 18) branches outside Pakistan. The
Bank is a subsidiary of Bestway (Holdings) Limited and Bestway (Holding) Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Bestway
Group Limited which is incorporated in the United Kingdom.

Tha Bank's ordinary shares are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. s Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) are on the list of
the UK Listing Authority and the London Stock Exchange Professional Securities Markel. These GDRs are also eligible for
trading on the Intermational Order Book System of the London Stock Exchange. Further, the GDRs constilute an offering in
the United States cnly to qualified instilutional buyers in reliance on Rule 1444 under the US Securities Act of 1933 and an
offering outside the United States in reliance on Regulation 5.

MNon-controlling interest represents National Bank of Pakistan's 45% share in the net asset value of UBL UK and a 1.13%
sharas held by past and present employees of UBLFM in the net assal value of UBLFM.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In accordance with the directives of the Federal Government regarding the shifing of the banking system to Islamic modes,
the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has issued various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-related modes of
financing include purchase of goods by banks from their customers and immediate resale to them at appropriate mark-up in
price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and sales arising under these arrangements are not reflected in these
consolidated condensed interim financial statemants as such, but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilised and
the appropriate portion of mark-up thereon, The Islamic Banking branches of the Bank have complied with the requirements
set oul under the Islamic Financial Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and
nolified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017.

Key financial figures of the Islamic Banking branches are disciosed in note 23 lo these consolidated condensed interim
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consclidated condensed interim financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for inlerim financial reporting. The accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting comprise of;

Intemational Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (1A5B) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chanered Accountants of Pakistan as are
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provigions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and
Directives Issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP).

Wherever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Acl, 2017 or the direclives issued
by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said direclives prevall.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

a2

33

a5

3.6

The SBP vide BSD Circular latter Mo, 10, dated August 26, 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting
Standard 38, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measuremen? and Intemational Accounting Standard 40, Investment
Property for banking companies till further instructions. Moreover, SBP vide BPRD circular no. 4, dated February 25, 2015
has deferred the applicabillty of Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) 3, Profit and Loss Sharing on Deposils.
Further, according to the notification of tha SECP issued vide SRO 411(1)2008 dated April 28, 2008, Intemational Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have nol been considered in the preparation of these consolidated condensed interm
financial statements. However, Investments have been classified and valued In accordance with the requirements of various
circulars issued by the SBP. Further, segmenl information s being disclosed in accordance with SBP's prescribed format as
per BSD circular 4 dated February 17, 2008 which prevails over the requirements specified in IFRS 8.

SECP vide its notification SRO 833 (132014 dated 10 July 2014, adopted IFRS 10 effective from the periods starting from 30
June 2014. However, vide its nolification SRO 56 (142018 dated 28 January 2016, it has bean notified that the requirements
of IFRS 10 and section 237 of the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984 will not be applicable with respect to the investment
in mutual funds established under Trust stnecture.

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed afler enactment of the Companles Act, 2017, on May 30, 2017, The SECP
vide its Circular No, 23 of 2017, dated Oclober 04, 2017 allowed all those companies whose financial year closed on or
before December 31, 2017, were required to prepare financial statements In accordance with the provisions of repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984. Accordingly, these consolidated condansed inlerim financial statements have bean prepared in
accordance with Companies Act, 2017. Change to the significan! accounting policy, as a resull of the enactment of the
Companies Act, 2017, has been detailed in nole 4.1.1. Moreover, for certain overseas branches, the Bank has changed ils
accounting policy and followed the requirements of IFRS 9 as more fully explained in note 4,1.2,

The disclosures made in these consolidated condensed interim financlal statements have been limited based on a format
prescribed by the SBP vide BSD Circular Letter Mo. 2 dated May 12, 2004 and 1AS 34, Interim Financial Reporting. They do
not include all the disclosures required for annual financial statements, and these consolidaled condensed interm financial
statemnenis should be read in conjunction with the consofidated financial statemanis of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2017.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following revised standards, amendments and interpretalions with respect lo the approved accounting standards would
be effective from the dales mentioned below against the respeclive standard or interpretation;

= IFRS 9 'Financlal Instruments’ - effective date: July 1, 2018

The Bank iz currently awalting instructions from the SBP as applicability of LAS 39 was deferred by the SBP il further
instructions. However, the SBP has instructed banks to prepare polential qualitative and quantitative impact
assessments &5 a result of adoption of IFRS 9 using the performa financial statemants for the year ended December
31, 2017. The Bank is required to submit s impact assessment to the SBP in due course of time. For cerlain overseas
branches, the Bank has adopted IFRS 9 in respect of provizgion for impairment as more fully explained in note 4.1.2.

- IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' - effective date: July 1, 2018

The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of revenue. This will replace 185 18 '‘Revenus’ which covers
contracts for goods and services and LAS 11 "Construction Contracts’ which covers construction contracts.,

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of & good or service transfers to a
customer - 50 the nation of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. A new five-step process has been
introduced which must be applied before revenue can be recognised. Entities will have a choice of full retrospactive
application, or prospective application with additional disclosures.

The Bank is curranlly in the process of assessing the polential impacts of changes required in revenue recognition
poficles upan adoption of the standard,

- IFRS 16 'Leases’ - effective date: January 1, 2019

IFRS 16 will affect primarily the accounting by lessees and will result in the recognition of almost all leases on statement
of financial position. The standard ramoves the current distinction between operating and finance leases and requires
recognition of an assel {ihe rght to use the leased iem) and a financial labiity o pay rentals for vitually a2l lease
confracts. An optional exemplion exisis for shori-tesm and low-value leases. The accounting for lessors will not
significantly change.

As at the reporting date, the Bank has non-cancellable operating lease commitmenis. However, the Bank s curmently in
the process of assessing the potential impacts of changes as a resull of adoption of IFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

There are cerain cther new and amended standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Bank's
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 bul are considered not to be relevant or will not have any
significant effect on the Bank's operations and are therefore not detailed in these consolidated condensed inferim financial
statements.

ar Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year.

There are certain new and amended standards, interprelations and amendments thal are mandatory for the Bank's
accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
effect on the Bank's operations and therefore not detailed in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated condensed inferim financial statements are
consistent with those applied in the preparation of tha consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year anded
December 31, 2017 except for the following:

411 Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets - net of deferred tax

The Companies Ordinance, 1984 was repealed through the enaciment of the Companies Act, 2017. However, as directed by
the Securiies and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular No. 23 dated October 4, 2017, the financial reporting
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 were only made applicable for reporting periods starting from January 1, 2018,

Consequently, the Bank has changed its policy for accounting for a deficit arising on revaluation of fixed assals. The Bank's
pravious accounting policy (as described in Note 5.5.1 of the annual consolidated financial statements), in accordance with
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1884, raquired thal a deficit arising on revaluation of a paricular property was to be
adjusted against the total balance in the suerplus account or, if no surplus existed, was to be charged to the profit and loss
account as an Impairment of the assel. The Companies Act, 2017 remaved the specific provisions allowing the above
freatment. A deficit arizing on revaluation of a particular property is now 1o be accounted for in accordance with IFRS, which
requires that such deficit cannot be adjusted against surplus in another property, bul is to be taken to the profit and loss
account as an mpairment,

The effect of this change in accounting palicy, which is applied with retrespective effect, is as follaws:
As at December 31, 2017

Previously Change Restated
Rupees In '000
Impact on Statement of Financial Position
Unappropriated profit 76,651,713 (241,585) 76,410,128
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets 33,586,218 241,585 33,827 801

There is no impact on the consolidated condensed intenm profit and loss account, consolidated condensed interim statement
of comprehensive income and consolidated condensed interim cash flow statement.

The impact above relates to revaluation of fixed assets camied out as at December 31, 2017. There were no material impacts
relating o periods prior to December 31, 2017,

4.1.2 Impalrment on financlal assets

As per the accounting policy of the Bank, the provision against balances with other banks, investments, lendings o financial
Institutions and advances of overseas branches and subsidiaries are made as per the requirement of the respective
regulatory regimes. During the current year, IFRS — 9 became applicable for certain overseas branches of the Bank (ie.
branches in LIAE, Bahrain and Qatar). Accordingly, in respect of such branches, the Bank has changed its accounting policy
and has followed the requirements of IFRS — 8, while determining the pravisioning requirements against balances with other
banks, investiments, lendings to financial institutions and advances, Under this standard, provision against balances with
other banks, investments, lendings o financial institutions and advances is determined under expected credit boss model.
Previously, this was determined under the incurred loss model.

The adoption of this standard by cerlain overseas branches resulted in additional provisioning requirament of Rs, 2486
billion (net of deferrad tax amounting to Rs. 1.640 billion} as al Decembar 31, 2017, The amount of additional pravision has
been adjusted in the opening retained eamings as allowed under IFRS 9 and permitted by the State Bank of Pakistan, The
Impacts of change in policy can be summarised as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

4.2

a1

5.2

As at June 30,  As at January

2018 1, 2018
Impact on Statement of Financial Position e R p@es in "000)
Balances with other banks 71,633 92,056
Invesiments 905,649 B71,640
Lendings o financial institutions 67,721 136,486
Advances 1,160,460 1,185,661
Other iabilities {provision against off balance sheet obligations) 605,865 211,244
2811328 2497 087
Less: related defermed tax (965.438) (B56,524)
1,845,880 1,640,563
For the six
menths ended
June 30, 2018
Impact on Profit and Lose Account (Rupees in "000}
- Profit before tax would have been higher by $
(Rupees)
- Eamings per share would have bean higher by Q.47

There would be no impact on the cash flow statemeant.

The financial isk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in the annual financial statements
of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017,

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

Thase consolidated condensed inlerm financial statermants have been prepared under the historical cost convention except
that certain operating fxed assets ! non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims have been stated at revalued
amounts, certain investments and derivative financial instruments have been stated at falr value and net obligations in
respect of defined benefit schemes are carried at their present values.

Judgements and estimates

The preparation of these consolidated condensed Interim financial statements in conformity with approved accounting
standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels
and liabiliies and income and expenses. it also requires management lo exercise judgment in the application of its
accounting policies. The estimates and assumptlions are based on hislorical experence and various other factors that are
believed lo be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis,
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the perod of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and fulure periods.

Tha significant judgments made by management in applying Its accounting policles and the key sources of estimation
uncertainty were the same as those applied to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2017,

{Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS e [RUUpEES N "000) —eeeme
Call money lendings 17,700,000 585,000
Repurchase agreement lendings 5,351,000 6,931,953
Bai Muajjal receivabla from State Bank of Pakistan o 3,109,215
Other lendings o financial Institutions 21,551,817 26,100,227
44 602 817 36,726,395
Provision against lendings to financial instilutions (913,524} (B32.475)

43 293 33 220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7. INVESTMENTS {Lin-suitect] {Audited)
e 30, 2018 DieC ety 315 HHT
7.4 Investments by types Mol Hehd by Oroup collstural Toksl Hald by Group collutoral Totsd
[Rupets in S
Held for trading securities
Marks? Tredsury Bils 34,233,583 1. 352482 35,588,075 58,117,380 45,383,807 104,501 276
Paimian Incasimenl Bonas 2.383 - 2383 532,376 - 552,376
Teurmn Finance Corificalos - - - 10.245 - 10,245
258976 1252482 35, 588 458 59,709,590 45 33 907 105,093,897
Aondiable for sake securities
Market Treasury Bils 112,950,030 B2 TrTAET 176,733,187 108,314,347 154 204 832 302 818,879
Pakistan investment Bonds 18,112,788 183,077 542 LER R EE A 830,610 208,720,982 200,550,472
Govamment of Pakistan Sulouk 18,158 227 . 18,758 22T 18,102,213 . 18,102,273
Govammant of Pakistan Euobonds 18,080 520 . 18,080,520 16,788 510 . 6. TER 510
Dinfinary shfes of listed companien 17,582,638 - 17,582,638 18,362 M0 - 18,362 340
Prafeence sharms 426,917 - a7 391315 - 381,315
Drdinary shafes of unbsted companias TEIAN - 7534 258,757 = 258,757
Investman in REIT 458,500 - 458,580 441,406 - 441 406
Tarm Finance Cenificaies BEaM = 651,351 458,580 = 454,500
Forpign bonds - sovanaign 49,583,015 - A5983,015 38,483,705 - 38,492,705
Fanaign bonds - ofhers 17,190,208 = 17,780, 28 18,150,879 = 18,150,879
265,583 811 215,854, 69 471,448 Ba 244 571 532 39 934, 504 Badd 508, FaG
Held to maturity securities.
Marked Treasury Bils 7.2 581 e 7239, 581 T.363,088 . 763,088
Pakintan Irmesstmani Bonds 278305401 - 270,305 401 311, Te8 51T - 31,768,517
Gowamimant of Pakistan Ewcobontds B8,578.979 - 6,578,878 6,564,140 - 6,564,140
Gopwarmimeint of Pakistan Sulk 1.223.512 - 1273512 221,823 - 221,623
Termn Findncs Canificabes 6,258,197 - 6.253,197 6,626,766 - 6626, 766
Bubniks 12,063,833 - 2,053,633 10,512,247 . 10,512,247
Participation Tarm Cordificains 437 - 437 437 . 437
Dabanluses 2,208 = 2,266 2,206 . 2,265
Forzign bonds - sovanaign 18,518,146 = 1518, 148 16,208,118 ' 18,208,116
Foneign bonds. - others 5387133 = §.387 133 #0590, 955 ' 8,098, 055
Recovery note Jra e - arddan 340,333 . 340,333
COC SAARC Fund 264 - 2o 240 - 240
Commedcinl Pager ZET 224 - 2IT X234 ] - 22T X4
337160454 - F37.160 484 3640832151 - 364832151
AREOC IR
LB, Liguidity Plus Fund 02200 = TR 93,379 - 3,371
LB, Manay Market Fund 48,262 - 648,252 11,455 . 11,455
UBL Governmant Securies Fund = . - 265,325 . 265,328
UL Seock Advontage Fund 255,853 . 265,653 210,148 . 210,148
UEBL Financial Planning Fund - - - 37,0368 - a7, 038
LB Fingncial Secior Fund 135178 - 135178 - -
Al Areen lalamic Cash Fund - - - 3T - T
Al Ameen |alamic Sovansign Fund - - - 382 - =2
Al Amaan Sharkh Slock Fund - - - 320,504 - 320.694
Al Amaan |slamic Asset ASocation Fund 220681 - am.ea 6H1E - 216,916
Al Amnen Istlamic Financial Pianning Fund 203810 . 200,910 316,142 - 316,142
Al Amanen Islamic Financial Planning Fund || . . - 45123 . 45,173
UBL insurors Limitsd araris . ararie 345,087 e 345,087
Khushhall 8ank Limiled T3 27N ATS . 2202476 20485922 . 2048922
Oman Uniled Exchange Camgpany, Muscat 1.1 - Br.ara B8 T02 - &8, a2
DHA Cogen Limited 72 - - - . - -
4 B30 40 - 4,838,640 4,243 6484 = 4,243,644
831,830,001 AT T 2N BA004E 347 BTIAST AT 445,318,501 1118775918
Previgion lor dimingtion in valus ol iImeEimants T4 {4.776.825) = {4,775 ,825) (3,948,523} = |3, 1448, 523}
Invasimants - nel of provigions B27 0652 266 2T T2 B24. 268 51T BT0.307 B 44531850 1115626295
{Dnficht) ! surplus on mvalantion of avaiabia for sAl securities 11,552 454) {2 B03.257) 14,155,711} axnan 5980887 9,292 698
{Defich) ¢ surplus on revaluntion of heid for fMSng securties. (1241} () (1,250} 3 2173 2307
Total investmants. &% 808 5T 214 503 944 B40,112,516 BT3E19,735 451,31 581 1,124 821,300

7.2 Asaresull of exercise of @ pledge in 2013, the Bank holds 20.99% of the ssued and paid up capital of OHA Cogen Limiled without any consideration having boen pald,
Consequanty, DHA Cogen Limied is cassified as an associated company,

7.3 This repmsonts the Bank's subscription towands the paid-up caplinl of Kheshhali Bank Liméed. Pursuant to saction 10 of the Khushhal Bank Ordinance, 2000 simiegic
invastorns including the Bani cannot soll or tanster thedr ivesstmant belore & porod of Bye years thal has sxpired on Octobar 10, #2008, Thareafior, such sala | tansfer
wouild be subijoct 1o the prior approvid of tha 58P, Howovar these shams ane 31l sppeanng as frozen as no approval has beon ootaned by the Bank o unimnze these
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

7.4  This includes provision for impairment an account of adoption of IFRS 9, as more fully explained in note 4.1.2.

(Un-audited)  (Audited)
Note June 30, December
2018 3, 217
B. ADVANCES s (Rupees in "000) ———
Loans, cash cradits, running finances, elc.
In Pakistan 494 582,521 413,891,656
Outside Pakistan 174,440,442 177,904,909
669,022,963 501,796,565
Isiamic financings and related assets 233 21,528,821 22 200,806
Bills discountad and purchased
Payable in Pakistan 20,987,019 21,115,250
Payable outside Pakistan 55,141,468 51,126,252
76,128,487 72,241,502
Advances - gross 766,680,271 686,238 873
Provigion against advances
Specific 8.1 (46,222,094) (40,225,684)
General 8.2 (4,693.677) (3,506,469)
Advances - net of provision 715,764,500 642,506,720
8.1  Advances include Rs. 58,088.219 million {December 31, 2017; Rs. 52,907.648 million) which have been placed under non-
performing status as detailed below:
Juna 30, 2018 (Un-sudited)
Category of Classified shvances Prowlsdon required Prowision hald
Claasification Domestic Dverseas Total Domestic Overseas Tatsl Damestic Overseas Tatal
[Rupees in "600)
DOt Assais Espocially
Mbanfioned * B0 - 80,308 4432 - S432 £432 - 4432
Substandand 2241 803 2213380 4 454,553 553,502 513,758 1067 660 553,902 513,758 1,067 560
Doubtul 55142 3360833  3E35675 285,553 1,542,302 1527 M5 HEh 503 1542522 1.BIT 15
Lo ABEISER M TMIOT 49506085  ZIAIIIAS  1GAGGANG 43320087 T3EF2 285 16,488 502 43,372 087
2776063 30318580  SA088.3i0 24566212 71 555.B82 45207 D04 FINTF] 21,555 552 A6, 22 (4
Decearmber 31, 2017 [Audited)
Category of Classified advances Prowision required Prowision held
Classification Domestic Qwvarsoas Total Domestic Oversoas Tatal Domsstic Qverseas Total
[Rupoas in D00}
Dtheer Assets Especially
Meartioned * BAE53 - 1,653 2z - 2mz 2012 . 2ma2
Sutwtandand 1062286  441TD61  S4TO.MT 258,707 042,062 1,200,760 258,707 842,052 1,200,768
Doubthl 1452724 5910,333 8,362,557 TB3,B04 2475262 3,258,066 783,804 2475262 3,250,066
Loz 25,596,350 13387708 38984 091 24512773 11251062 35783 EIT 24§1?.1'1'5 11,251,082 35 TE3. A7
l‘ﬁ.‘-ﬁ._ﬁ'lﬁ 24 715,132 52907646 25557298 14668386 40225 7258 14,668 356 A0 25 BE
* The péher assels especialy mentionad calegory porans in agrculturat financo and advancos o small eniemprises,
8.2 General provision represents provision amounting to Rs. 275.974 million (December 31, 2017: Rs. 247.323 million) against

consumer finance portfolio as required by the Prudential Regulations issued by the SBF and Rs. 4,358.818 million
{December 31, 2017; Rs. 2,881.358 million) pertaining o overseas advances fo meel the requirements of the requlatory
authorities of the respective countries in which the overseas branches and subsidiaries operate and on account of adoption
of IFRS 9, as more fully explained in note 4.1.2. General provision also includes Rs. nil (December 31, 2017: Rs. 328.700
million) which is based on regulatory instructions. Further, the Bank camies provision of Rs. 57.885 million (December 31,
2017: Rs. 49,088 millicn) as a matter of prudence based on management estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)

FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

8.3

8.1

10.

1.

The Bank has availed the benefit of Forced Sale Value (FSV) of certain mortgaged properties held as collateral against
non-performing advances as allowed under BSD Circular 1 of 2011, Had the benefit under the said circular not been taken
by the Bank, the specific provision againsl non-perferming advances would have been higher by Rs. 22.020 million
{December 31, 2017: Rs. 24.540 million). The FSV benefit availed is not available for the distribution of cash or stock

dividend to sharehoiders.

OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress
Property and equipment
Intangible assets

(Un-audited) {Audited)

June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

wreeee (RUp@ES N "000) —ewemn
2,034,702 4,467,036

48,600,141 44,820,475
1,471,585 1,086,566

52,106,428 50,384,077 _

Additions and disposals during the period amounted to Rs. 2.859.587 millicn (June 30, 2017: Rs.3,803.636 million) and

Rs. 347 888 million (June 30, 2017: Rs. 131.131 millicn), respectively.

BORROWINGS

Sacured

Bommowings from the State Bank of Pakistan
Export refinance scheme
Refinance facility for modemization of SME
Long term financing facility

Repurchase agreement borrowings
Bai Muajjal payable to other financial institutions

Unsecured

Call borrawings

Overdrawn nostro accounts
Trading liabilities

Other borrowings

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers
Fixed deposits
Savings deposils
Sundry deposits
Margin deposits
Currant accounts - remunerative
Current accounts - non-remunerative

Financial Institutions
Remunerative deposits
Mon-remunerative deposits

(Un-audited)
June 30,
2018

{Audited)

December 31,

2017

weees (RlUpEES N "D0D) e

17,496,702 19,375,930
5,600 10,250
21,208,295 17,312,481
38,710,597 36,698,661
179,807,695 453,224 580

34,936 846 -
253,455,138 489,523,241
11,196,790 10,167 645
597,108 577.014

4,271,645 -
30,422 517 16,414,259
46,488,060 27,158,918
299,943,198 517,082,159
328,197 467 367,785,188
412,160,280 388,150,655
39,619,532 29,508,244
8,508,470 5,552,140
6,981,918 6,014,259
543,183,092 491,259,317
1,338,740,758 1,2B8,269,843

35,087,789 5?.{365.9?j
22,008,097 20,822,087
57,095,886 77.888,071
1,395,836,645 1,366,157.814
Half i it 2018 | 49




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

12.

121

12.2

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF DEFERRED TAX

Surplus / {deficit) arising on revaluation of assets - net of tax:

Fixed assets [ non-banking assets
= Group's share
- Mon-controlling interest

Available for sale securities
= Group's share
- Mon-controlling interest

(Deficit) / surplus arising on revaluation of assets of associates

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets

Surpius on revaluation of fixed assets / non-banking assets as at January 1

Transferred to retained eamings consequent to the change in accounting
policy - refer note 4,1.1

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets | non-banking assets as at January 1

Revaluation of fixed assets [ non-banking assets during the pariod / year
Exchange adjusiments
Reversal on disposal of non-banking asset
Transferred 1o unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the pariod [ year - net of deferred tax
Related deferred tax liability on incremental depreciation charged
during the period  year

Less: Related deferred tax liability on;
Revaluation as at January 1
Revaluation of fixed assets [ non-banking assets during the period /! year
Exchange adjustments
Reversal on disposal of non-banking assets
Incremental depreciation charged during the period / year

Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of available for sale securities

Market Treasury Biils

Pakistan Investment Bonds

Listed shares

REIT Investment

Term Finance Cerificates, Sukuks, other bonds elc.
Foreign bonds

Related deferred tax
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Note

121

12.2

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 217
Restated
semeees [RuUpees in "000) ———
27,281,282 27.249.117
1,028,196 958,856
28,308,478 28,207,973
(2,278,628) 5.856.609
(529,352) {277.531)
(2,807 980) 5,619,168
{274) GED
25,501,224 33,827,801
20,417 852 22 502,554
- 241,585
29 417 952 22,744 139
- 6,359,394
188,092 353,662
(38,875) -
{29,007) (52,015)
(15,201) (27.228)
105,008 6,673,813
29,522 961 20,417 952
1,209,979 960,433
- 216,535
32311 60,238
(13,608) -
(15,201) (27,228)|
1,213,483 1,209,879
28,309,478 28,207,973
(Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

e RUp@@s in "000)

(5.794) (2.034)
(2,878,539) 6,285,489
2,511,511 1,780,430
79,211 -
(140,240 28,475
(3,698,103) 1,201,338
(4,131,9589) 9,292,695
1,323,979 (3.673.530)
\2,807,980) 5,619,168




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

13

131

132

133

134

13.4.1

13.4.2

13.4.3

13.4.4

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

(Un-audited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,

2018 2017
Direct credit substitutes —————{Rupees in '000)}-—---——
Contingant liabilities in respect of guarantees given favouring:
Governmaent 19,715,755 15,500,693
Banking companies and other financial institutions 1,255,003 1,064,067
Cithers 5,490,576 5,425,848
26,470, 424 21,990,608
Transaction-related contingent liabilities
Contingent liabifities in respect of performance bonds,
bid bonds, warranties, elc. given favouring:
Government 105,007,174 128,096,424
Banking companies and other financial institutions 7,217 265 8,408,147
Others 50,821,353 57,090,192

163,045, 752 193,554,763

Trade-related contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities in respect of letters of credit opened favouring:

Government 74,579,065 74,080,985
Banking companies and other financial institutions 10,710,204 8,732,484
Others 141,497,128 112,409,643
226,786,397 195,203,112

Other contingancies
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts 12,180,993 12,918,162

These mainly represent counter claims filed by the borrowers for restricting the Group from disposal of assets (such as
mortgaged / pledged assels kept as sacurity).

Based on legal advice and / or intermnal assessments, management is confident that the matters will be decided in favour of
the Group and the possibility of any outcome against the Group is remote and accordingly no provision has been made in
these consalidated financial slalaments.

On November 10, 2016, a judgement was passed by the Supreme Court (SC) declaring the insertions of amendments in
WWF Ordinance through Finance Act 2008 as unlawful. The Board of Directors of UBL FM in their meeting held on May 29,
2013, had resolved that accumulated unrecorded WWF provision from the date of its application till May 29, 2013 on all
the funds under management amounting to Rs. 286,124 million will be borme by the Holding Company in case the said
accumulated amount is required {o be paid to the Govemment authorities. The tax department has filed review patition
against the order of the SC which is currentiy pending.

Penalties amounting to Rs. 4.058 billion have been levied by the FE Adjudication Courl of the State Bank of Pakistan
relating to alleged contraventions of the requirements of foreign exchange regulations with respect to issuance and
certification of E-Forms by the Bank to cerain customers (Exporiers) who failed to submit the export documents
thereagainst, consequenily Foralgn Exchange on account of Expor Proceeds have nol been repatriated. The Bank
maintains that it fully discharged its liability, in accordance with the law and has filed a civil suit in the High Court of Sindh
challenging the levy of the penalty. The High Courl has granted a stay on action being taken against the Bank. The
managameant, basad on the advice from legal counsel, is confident that the view of the Bank will prevail and tha Bank will
not be exposed to any loss an this account,

United Bank Limited Yemen ("UBL") issued two Standby Letters of Credit (SBLCs) for USD 12 million {Rs. 1,458 million)
and USD 13 million (Rs. 1,572 million) in favour of Ministry of Oil and Minerals, Yemen (MOM) against the counter SBLCs
of a foreign bank. In March 2015, the counter party to the underlying performance agreement notified MOM of suspansion
of the SBLCs due fo force majeure, In September 2015, MOM filed a law suil against UBL at the Preliminary Commaercial
Courl in Sana'a, Yemen claiming payment of both SBLCs for the total sum of USD 25 million (Rs. 3,037 million).
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13.4.5

13.4.6

135

136

13.7

13.8

13.9
1310

Dwuring 2016, no major debate was held as all hearings of the commercial case were adjoumed to subsequent dates, due to
either non-appearance of legal counsel of MOM or non-submission of responses by MOM, as required by legal counsel of
UBL. As per provisions of Yemeni procedural law, if 60 days lapse from the last hearing without the case being
reinitiated/followed up by the plaintiff, the casa shall be considered as if not filed and all proceduras have to ba re-initiated
afresh. In light of the foregoing provision of law, and non-follow up by MOM for over 60 days, UBL counsel submitted a
motion to dismiss the case. On Seplember 25, 2017 the Honourable judge presiding over the commercial case filed by
MOM against UBL in Yemen accepted UBL's motion to drop the case. In light of the foregoing, the case filed by MOM
against UBL in Yemen stands dismissed. Although the case against UBL Yemen has been dismissed by the Honourabile
Judge, the sald dismissal is on the basis of a procedural lapse by MOM in pursuing the case, and nol on the actual merits.
Hence MOM can reinitiate the case against UBL afresh.

The ICC Award has also been announced wheraby ICC has accepted the request of counter party lo declare Force Majeura
as per tha terms of the Production Sharing Agreement (PSA) between Reliance and MOM. In terms of the ICC Award, the
PSA stands cancelled.

Based on the legal advice of the Bank's legal counsel in Yemen and in view of facts sumounding the matter, management is
of the view that it is unlikely that thare will be any financial impact on the Group.

United Bank Limited and its Mew York Branch (NY Branch) have entered into a written agreemant (WA 2018) with the
Federal Reserve Bank of Mew York (FRENY) effective 2 July 2018 upon termination of the earier written agresment
entered into on 28 October 2013 (WA 2013). This agreement was entered based on the findings of FRENY in their most
recant examination of NY Branch.

The WA 2018 directs UBL to take measures to strengthen the risk management and compliance function, corporate
governance and oversight, compliance with Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) / Anti Money Laundering {AML) compliance, Customer
Due Diligence and Suspicious Activity Monitoring and Reporting Program within the stipulated timelines. Bank is
undertaking all steps to further strengthen its Compliance Framework to fully comply with the WA 2018, While the Bank
seeks o comply with all the requirements, and at this stage there is no indication of any financial impact, it is nol possible to
ascertain the eventual outcome of these matters.

Punjab revenue authorily issued show cause nolice to UBL Fund Managers Limited requiring them 1o pay sales tax under
Punjab sales tax on service act 2012 on management fee eamed in Punjab from May 22, 2013, The Company has filed a
petition on July B, 2014 in the High Court of Sindh. A favorable oulcome of this petition is expected.

For conlingencies relating to taxation refer nola 18.

Commitments to extend credit

The Group makes commitments to extend credit in the nomal course of s business but these being revocable
commitments do nol attract any significant penally or expense if the facility is unilatarally withdrawn.

{Un-auditad) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts ~— (Rupees in "000) ——
Purchase 288,447 405 242,093,757
Sale 241,692 999 213,172,200
Commitments in respect of derivatives
Interest rate swaps 2927752 4,358,641
FX options - purchased 109,750 ﬁ.SEB
FX oplions - soid 109,750 2
Forward purchase of Govemment securilies 1,053,275 ?.E ?U.EE
Forward sale of Govemmaenl securities - 1_4!?
Commilments in respect of capilal expendilure 1,977,773 1,987,978

UBL Bank (Tanzanka) Limited (UBTL) is a whelly owned subsidiary of UBL (the Bank). The operating losses of UBTL in tha
last two years along with the adverse exchange movement in Tanzanian Shilling against Pak Rupee has resulled in a
significant decline in net assets value of the subsidiary. ts capital is below the regulatory requirement. Management of
UBTL has requested the Bank to inject additional capital and the Bank has approved capital injection of USD 9.4 million
(Rs, 1,142.074 million). The Bank, after obtaining regulatory approval procass for transfer of funds for capital injection, has
injected USD 4.4 million (Rs. 508.992 milion) in the current pariod, UBTL, is in process of oblaining approvals from its
central bank for allowing it to increase authorized capital by USD 4.4 million.
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14.

15.

16.

As at December 31, 2017, the Bank has also provided a comfort latter to the management of UBTL confirming its financial
and operational support. Management expects UBTL to continue to operata as a going concem.

MARK-UP { RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On loans and advances to customers
On lendings 1o financial institutions
Call money lendings
Repurchase agreement lendings
Other lendings to financial institutions

On investmenis in
Heid for trading securities
Available for sale securities
Held to maturity securities

On deposits with financial institutions

MARK-UP { RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

On deposits

On securities sold under repurchase agreements
On other shart term borrowings

On long term borrowings

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances elc.

Charge for compensaled absences
Medical expenses

Contribution to defined contribution plan
Charge in respact of defined benefit cbligations
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.
Depreciation on operating fixed assets
Depreciation on Islamic financing against leased assets (ljarah)
Amaortization

Culsourced service charges including sales commission
Communications

Banking service charges

Cash transportation charges

Stationery and printing

Legal and professional charges
Advertisement and publicity

Repairs and mainlanance

Travelling

Office unning expensas

Vehicle expenses

Entertainment

Cartage, freight and conveyance
Insurance expense

Auditors' remuneration

Training and seminars

Brokerage expenses

Subscriptions

Donations

MNon-executive Direclors' fees

Zakat pald by overseas branch
Miscellaneous expanses

veses s [Un-audited)......

January - January -

June 2018 June 2017

= (Rupees in "000) ——
20,827,184 16,202,061
165,566 859,392
286,840 217,083
810,249 B26.445
1,262,755 1,142,820
1,628,673 GEE. 138
17,195,153 17,965,206
14,907,178 15,124 656
33,731,005 33,778,000
337,198 92,626
56,158,142 51,305,607
17,294 256 15,988,339
7,948,034 5,254,604
1,605,696 1,014,167
246,637 230,403
27,085,623 22 487 513
7,752,381 7111634
64,120 148,358
389,889 357,490
237 451 185,757
208,904 186,639
2,395,830 2,330,531
1,182,446 1.047.670
96,272 g7.272
253,870 195.074
2,335,273 2,440,018
797,890 641,638
833812 598,476
518,060 356,111
370428 323678
443,080 335,118
383,843 490,544
958,079 BB0,193
132,265 157,937
230,264 282,186
95,460 90,713
95,100 119,492
40,817 48,749
68,119 66,726
58,858 52,515
64,688 73.21
8,578 14,895
96,813 76,793
3,768 750
37,149 20,981
33,755 49,461
75,575 69,109
20,262 638 18,850 819
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17.

18.

18.1

19.

EXTRA ORDINARY | UNUSUAL ITEM - (PENSION COST)

The extracrdinary charge of Rs. 8.4 Billion represenis the estimated amount of the cost of pension payable as per
Honorable Supreme Court’s Order increasing the minimum pensicn to Rs. 8,000 per month subject to 5% annual increase
from January 1, 2019. Estimale is based on on-going life verification of both pensicners and retrenched employees. The
estimate is also based on the payment of pension without taking effect of commutation. The Bank has sought clanfication
from the Honorable Supreme Court on the effect of commutation In calculation of minimum pension and the treatment of
ex-amployees who were saparated under the Golden Handshake Scheme described as Retrenchment Scheme of 1937,
The amount will be adjusted based on the guidance received from the Honorable Supreme Court.

TAXATION

The Income Tax returns of the Bank have been filed up to the tax year 2017 (accounting year ended December 31, 2016)
and were deemed to be assessed under section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance) unless amended by
the Commissioner of Inland Revenue,

The income fax authorities have issued amended assessment orders for the tax years 2003 to 2017, and created
additional tax demands (including disallowances of provisions made prior to Seventh Schedule} of Rs.12.608 million
(December 31, 2017: Rs.12,928 million), which have been fully paid as required under the law. Tha Bank has filed
appeals before the various appellate forums against these amendments. Where the appellate authorities have allowed
relief on cerain issues, the assessing authorties have filed appeals before higher appellate forums. Where the appellate
authorities have not allowed refief the Bank has filed appeals before higher appellate forums. The management of the
Bank s confident that the appeals will be decided in favour of the Bank.

The tax raturns for Azad Kashmir (AK) and Gilgit Baltistan {GB) Branches have been filed uplo the tax year 2017 (financial
year 2016) under the provisions of section 120{1) read with section 114 of the QOrdinance and in compliance with the terms
of the agreement between banks and the Azad Kashmir Council in May 2005. The retums filed are considered as deemed
assessmant orders under the law.

The fax authorilies have also camred out monitoring for Federal Excise Duty, Sales tax and withholding laxes covering
perod from year endad 2007 to 2016. Consequently various addbacks and demands wera ralsed creating a total demand
of Rs. 920 million (December 31, 2017; Rs. 919 million). The Bank has filed appeals against all such demands and is
confident that these would be decided in the favour of the Bank.

The tax retums for UAE, Yemen and Qatar branches have been filed upto the year ended December 31, 2017 and for
USA branch uplo the year ended December 31, 2016 under the provisions of the laws prevailing in the respective
countries, and are deemed as assessed unless opened for reassessment.

For UBL UK, UBTL, UBL FM and UET income lax raturns have been filed up lo the accounting year ended December 31,
2016 and for USAG these relurns have been filed up to the accounting year ended December 31, 2014 under the
provisions of the laws prevailing In the respective countries and are deemed as assessed unless opened for
reassessment by the tax authorities. Additionally, tax clearance has been issued for UBL UK, UBTL and USAG till tha
accounting year 2016, 2015 and 2014 respectively. There are no material tax contingencies in any of the subsidianes.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as held to maturity, is based on quoted market price. Quoted
securities classified as held to maturity are cared al cost. The fair value of unquoted equity securities, other than
investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up value of these investments as per
their latest available audited financial statemants.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term loans, other assets, other liabilities, fixed term deposits and
borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and aclive market for these
assets and liabilities and refiable data regarding market rates for similar instruments,

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly
different from their camying values since these are elther shor-term in nature or, in the case of customer loans and
deposits, are frequently repriced,
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The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in

making the measuremants:

Lewvel 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Lewvel 2: Fair value measurements using inpuls other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are obsarvable for the
assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using input for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.

uncbservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at fakr value
- Invastmants

Govemnment Securities (Thills, PIBs, GoP Sukuks

and Eurobonds)

Foreign Bonds - Soversign

Foraign Bands - olhers

Ordinary shares of listed companios

Dabi secimities (TFCs)

Invwestment in REIT

Inwasiment in Associabes

Financial assets not measured at fair valuo
- Investments (HTM, unlisted ordinary shares,
praference Shares)

Off balance sheet financial instruments

Forward purchase and sake of foreign exchange contracts
Inlesest rala swaps

F¥ oplions - purchased and sold

Forward purchase of government securilies

Forward sale of govemmaent securities

On balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets measured at falr value
- [nvestments

Government Secunties (Thillz, PIBs, GoP Sukuks

and Eurcbonds)

Foreign Bonds - Soversign

Foreign Bonds - othars

Ordinary shares of listed companies

Dabt secawities (TFCs)

Investment in REIT

Invastment in Associates

Financial assets not measured al fair value
- Investments (HTM, unlisted ordinary sharnes,

praference shares)

Off balance sheat financial instruments

Forward purchase and sake of foreign exchange contracts
Interest rate swaps

F¥ oplions - purchased and sold (not)

Forward purchase o govamment securilbes

Forward sale of govemment securities

June 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Carrying ! Fair valus
Notional valus Level 1 Leval 2 Lovel 3 Total
|Rupseas [n "000)

414,668,175 414,668,175 414,668,175
44,408 954 44,408, 954 44,408,954
16,025,114 16,025,114 16,025,114
17,780,581 17,780,681 - 17,780,591

584,073 . 584,073 594,073
5aT.801 537,801 - 537,801
4,630,840 - 4,838,840 - 4,838,840

341,257 968 - - -

B40, 112516 18,318,382 480,536,156 458 BS54 548

SBEIE‘H-{J A0 a71.782 9?1’?32

T053275 D) - 918

December 31, 21T {Audited)

Carrying ! Fair valua
Notional value Lavel 1 Leval 2 Leval 3 Total
{Rupees in 000}

B79.318,633 679,318,633 679,318,633
38,480,598 38,490,538 38,400 508
18,352,217 19,352,117 18,352,217
18,318,867  18,318.667 - 18,318,667

382425 . 382 425 382425
458,590 458,590 - 458,500
A 243,844 4.247,644 - 4,243,644
364,356 526 : 2 . .
1124821300 18777257 741787517 - TB0.584.774
455 265 957 1,833 6858 - 1,933 B8
S350 041 i —
= 16638 3 -
7,570,850 T1.155) (55
1478 2 2)
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19.2 Certain categories of operating fixed assets (land and buildings) and non-banking assets acquired in satisfactions of claims
are carried at revalued amounts (level 3 measurement) determined by professional valuers based on their assessment of
the market values.

19.3 Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3.

Debt Securities

The fair value of Federal Government securiies is determined using the prices [ rates available on Mutual Funds
Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) and the fair value of other corporate and foreign government securities is determined
using the rates from Reuters / Bioomberg.

Derivatives

The fair valuation technigues include forward pricing and swap models using present value calculations.

Operating fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of claims

Land, buildings and non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims are revalued on a periodic basis using
professional valuers. The valuation is based on their assessment of the market value of the assets. The effect of changes
in the uncbservable inpuls used In the valuations cannot be determined with certainty, accordingly, a qualitative disclosure
of sensitivity has not been presented in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

20, RISK MANAGEMENT
The SBF has introduced two liquidity standards through its guidelines on Basel IIl; Liquidity Standards, These are the
Liguidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Nel Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR). The objective of LCR is to ensure that Banks have
an adequate stock of unencumbered high gquality liquid assets (HQLA) to survive a significant siress scenario. The
objective of NSFR is to reduce funding risk over a longer time horzon by requiring Banks to fund their aclivities with
sufficiently stable sources of funding on an ongoing basis.

{Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Audited)
June 30, March 31, December 31,
2018 2018 2017
Total Adjusted Value
(Rupees in "000)

20.1 Liguidity Coverage Ratio
Total HOLA 391,016,572 395,007,330 414,579,250
Total Met Cash Qutfiows 219,245,849 230,129,186 255,636,947
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (%) 178.35% 171.65% 162.18%
Minimum Requirement (%) 80.00% 50.00% 90.00%

{Unaudited) (Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
semeeeee Total Weighted Value
(Rupees in "000)

20.2 Net Stable Funding Ratio
Total Available Stable Funding (ASF) 1,528,770,648 1,128,634,T08
Total Reguired Stable Funding (RSF) 1.132,557 955 1.086,955,065
Met Stable Funding Ratie (%) 134 88% 103.83%
Minimum Requiremeant (%) 100.00% 100.00%
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SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

For the six months ended Juns 30, 2018 (Un-audited)

Conporate Trading and Commarcial Assat Inter segmant
Finance Sales AR Sy Banking Managomani o olimination
{Rupees in 000]
Tatad incoema 444 267 15412507 18,183,841 7,363,853 553,438 1,567 408
Tolal eapenses {66,643) {1,215,739) (16,452,306 (5,456,647} [289,843) (BA72.278)
Prafit § [ioss) bafore tax ITT 844 14,156,768 2,731,635 B8, 998 253,580 (T.E604.8T1)
Segmen retum on Bssets (ROA) 1356% 12% 0.2% 02% 23% -

Sogmenl cost ol lemds 1.0% 5.2% 24% 4.1% *

For the six months ended June 30, 2017 {Un-audited)

Corporate Trading and Commercial Aasel Indier segmant
Financs Sales RebsiBakng  “conking  Mamagement Qthers slimination
(Rupees In 000 -
Todad incoeme 108,382 16,940,726 15,788,259 7354118 711,564 1,478,848
Talal expenses (28,162) meessa|| (e 212 (2,239,116) (329,225} {4, [585.415)
Pralit [ (s beafone tax 80,220 16.274.067 4T 057 5,115,000 382338 380420
Segmant rolun on assets (ROA) 8% 21% 0.1% 1.3% 5008% -
Segment cost of funds 1% A.5% 26% 30% -
As at Juna 30, 2018 (Un-audited)
Corporate Trading and Commercial Aszat Inter sagmant
Ei Sals Ratail Banking Banking W " Qthers Eminiati
(Rizpeos in 000 -
Segment assats {grss of NPL peovisions) Gi8635 | [ o0374ra5s | [ 1015475634 | [ ooe 602657 Z.120,261 154,560,520
Segnent non perarming loans (WPLS) - B26.845 7838472 49,372 801 . 50,104
Segment provision hald against NPLs - 800,021 T.138.739 38256 237 - 26,097 -
Sepmen! Eablilies peagra || esasansez || 11e047s473 || edzazaans 558,863 18,757,068 || (eo7aes sve))
Trad d sl cmiﬁ:f Inter
Corporate ing an Aszat sagmaent
Financa Sales e ___ Managoment e wliménation
(Rupeas in 000]
Seoment gssats {gross of NPL provisions) 134875 | [ 1.250,566,502 | [ 1294001 502 | [ 625655607 1,581 665 135,167,850 | [17,093 648,454
Sagmant nan parfarming loans (NPLS) 674,163 1,003,160 10,312,357 40,851,377 - B6.591 .
Segment provisian held against NPLs. 515863 1002844 425..123- 30,248 465 - 32088 -
Segman kabiklies 282,650 | | 1174670458 574,611,057 162 10,743,193 | | (1,053 648,434)

Segment assets and liabilittes include inter segmenl balances.

Transactions between reporiable segmenis are based on an appropaiate transfer pricing mechanism using agreed rates.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group has related party relationships with its associates, employee benefit plans and its directors and executive officers
{including their associates).

The Group enters into transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. Contributions to and accruals in
respect of staff retirement benefits and other benefit plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations [ terms of
the contribution plan. Remuneration to the executives / officers is determined in accordance with the terms of their
appointment.

Details of transactions with related parties during the period, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhara in
these consolidated condensed interim financial statements, are as follows:
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Investmeents.

Dpsening balance
Irvestment made during the period | yasr

Irrwmatenend recsrnid | fispostd off duning thi pekod | vakr
[Exaity madrad adisimants

Clorsing balance

Provision for dimisution in valss of invesiments

Advances

Opening balance
Ackition during this peniod | vilr
IRopenint huring e peaicd | year
Transfer out - nat

Cioainng balingsy

Pretpvissns ek aizaifre g

Borowings

Opening balance
Bormowings curing the peeed | year
Epsind during the period | year
Clolng balancs
Doposits and other accounts.
DOpening balance
Recanvad during the pesiod | year
Withgrmwn during the pecod | yoee
Trareshet in / joul) - ret

Closing balanos

Other Liabdsties

Irvberat | mar-up payabie on deposits and bomowings
Paygabis b stafl ket et

Unaamed ncoma

Contingencies and Commit
LLefter of guaranies

et charge for defined contribulion plans.
el changs | (peverial) for definad berefil plans
D sxpaniad

Insirancs frormicm paed
Trsurincs ciaire setied
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[presonnel prrsonnel
(gt i D0
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3,745 8T . - 1,355,953 .
¥ ® (3,272,566} &l (5.7%0,374) ¥
= = Forkl = = 20448 =
)X )X
= “;!“’ S = 28414
5,303 205368 2155148 26N 106 2334 WTE45 2155148 16007651
4,501 118407 - B51.143 11,514 149,324 - 65331493
158} [74.600) = [574) (8640} [296.736) = ras1zead
= 20T . % . 14, AitA . 1
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23.

231

ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

Tha Bank operates 93 (December 31, 2017: 83) Istlamic Banking branches and 156 (December 31, 2017: 156) Islamic
Banking windows, The statement of financial position of the Bank's Islamic Banking branches as at June 30 is as follows:

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Due from financial institutions
Investments

Islamic financing and related assets
Operating fixed assats

Other assets

Total Assels

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Due to financial institutions

Deposits and other accounts
Current accounts - non remunerative
Current accounts - remunerative
Saving accounis
Term deposits

Deposits from financial institutions - remunearative
Deposits from financial institutions - non remunerative

Due 1o Head Office
Other liabilities

MET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY

Islamic Banking Fund
Accumulated losses

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of assals

Mote {Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)
6,462,822 5,428,040
6,666,953 6,551,518
17,700,000 3,694,215
26,770,063 25,401,968
233 21,435,439 22,110,626
anorz 299,950
486,779 421,843
79,853,128 63,908,160
ar4.637 400,973
125,000 1,500,000
30,076,823 25,163,438
1,106,979 1,293,692
12,578,721 11,839,659
8,911,270 982,345
22,596,538 20,462,360
36,422 34,505
75,308,753 59,775,999
1,732,266 61,035
347,792 327,658
77,886,448 62,065,665
1,866,680 1,842,495
2,181,000 2,181,000
(73,150) (362,502)
2,107,850 1,818,498
{141,170} 23,997
1.966.680 1,842 495
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233

234

The profit and loss account of the Bank’s Islamic Banking branches for the six months ended June 30 is as follows:;

Return eamed
Retum expensed

Provision against loans and advances - net
Met return after provisions

Other Income

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Gain / {loss) from dealing in foraign currencies
Loss on sale of securities - net

Other income

Total other income

Other Expenses

Administrative expenses

Other provisions - net

Total other expenses

Net profit for the period
Accumulated losses brought forward
Accumulated losses carried forward

Remuneration to Shariah Board and Advisor

Istamic financing and related assets

Financings

Murabaha

Musharaka running finance

ljarah

Istamic Export Refinance scheme - Murabaha
Diminishing Musharaka

Advances

Advances agalnst ljarah

Advances for Diminishing Musharaka
Advances for Murabaha

Profit and other receivables against financings and advances

Gross Islamic financing and related assets
Provision against financings and advancas

Charity Fund
Opening Balance
Additicn during the period ! year

Payments during the period / year
Closing Balance

60 | United Bank Limited

=—{lIn-audited)——
January - June January-June
2018 2017
(Rupees in "000)
1.918.13F 1,262,821
(926,803) (808,513
891,234 454,308
(3,202} {1.161)
988,032 453,147
68,162 44 450
218 (3549
- (438)
11,760 7,830
80,141 51,482
1.068,173 204,639
(776.014) {430,278)
{2.807) {1}
(778.821) (430.279)
289,352 74,360
(362 ,502) (B09,289)
(73.150) (934,929)
3,724 3,386
(Un-audited) {Audited)
June 30, December 31,
2018 2017

(Rupees in "D00) ——rwmr

643,620 720,017
i 15,000,000
386,934 490,963
126,849 -

18,874,225 4,358,154
20,031,628 20,569,134
126,576 53,539
BAS,170 1,255,734
54,460 88,165
1.076,206 1,397 438
420,987 234,234
21,528,821 22,200,808
(93,382) (90,180)
21,435,429 22,110,626
121 548

1,256 793
= {1,320

1,377 121




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CONDENSED INTERIM FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (UN-AUDITED)
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

24, NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE BALAMCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Directors in its meeting held on August 02, 2018 has declared an interim cash dividend in respect of the
quarter ended June 30, 2018 of Rs. 3.0 per share (June 30, 2017: Rs. 3.0 per share). The consolidated condensed interim
financial statements for the six months ended June 30, 2018 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be
accounted for subsequent to the peniod end.

25, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorised for issue on August 02, 2018 by the Board of
Directors of the Bank.

26. GENERAL
26.1 Comparatives

Comparative information has been reclassified, rearranged or additionally incorporated in these consolidated condensed
interim financial statements for the purposes of better presentation.

26.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees unless otherwise stated.

frley

] &

id 4 e 3 -

,ﬁfﬁafw( = fﬁ——«@ /,Az;u?' romm— e —E?
Aameet Karachiwalla Slma Kamil Amar Zafar Khan Arshad Ahmed Mir Sir Mohammed Anwar Pervez, OBE, HPK
Chilef Financial Officer Director Director Chairman

President &
Chial Executive Olficer

Half ' rt 2018 | 61




(Future Outlook) =35 "

And L Uik /mh._,g‘ﬁ; AL LSSy Al 2SS e ol fiztse UBLA
Tl b S g A pbyunnGS GoG b oS Pute o/ E
LGSR SnsitnZ Sor e bINTB A (e 5 BG E 1ot b S S e
B U L0 At J'/"'E 2 Pl e stw i3I £ L et pond g Sl
Sz st U I RWA IR 7T L 3t e b e s pllannd LEIL S
AL Je figend U

(o L L L it f GG LS s s s AL Eo
St gl L J_.?iu,;'{,;,hé‘;'lfjj’f'fv_msﬂﬂl_.wf_' i A1
2 e LBt e Py A S3 L2 G b s S T
UL Wi e b IS st nz TGS

(Acknowledgements) ,C‘-":L:ijll

Sl dBU St b et Pur Lyt L siln o A 25T
L P L2 s B g it & S o SE Spahioet alsf s St
N0 CIRRE Y ot DIFL S HE. ;mel:fg_j?'

M T )’J & _\s

(OBE, HPK) 359U~
R

g

2018112

62 | United Bank Limited




PG L a5 T332 (5.7 2017 25 el 4 k7 13.08 /13K _EEr 220182
&l ar(35.6 4 2L 2017 524 ske ot 16.90 1 41

el iar310.9Utd L2017 502 L n ot adiitaloos Fort /5.3,4 20182
S2e*600.4220185 A & JU FE L5 B s P oSt E 71, 501
102 L2017 45 & oL (3832 1B S Blian i1 3L 5L 2017 25
_(Dec'17:8.4.23)|., % bps

(UBL International) Jf*#/UBL

L F S le L L e oSi Liturt S ELE Se ;{A.uijj’”; GGE
AL bdihelie e BT SEN t’LﬂL_ﬁrL)f{rLf:J_L’ Enbift B g L
SUTBIG AL U Sl 8s Lt 2K F Jhﬁ;m@l:.;;;;(&‘l;g:féfdf
5 ISR AR Lo Sohic o ifbrme S361J6 S FoEIUBL 2 sl
et 4 UL Fre ol Ty b Mibic 500 L B9y -\ o\ P S et 2
J!ffkj,r(g/fujjkitms;& _+L[p.t:.:-..‘-ﬁfﬁ)ﬂb’&!u&'.Lb»grm.:;d;f(,:}df&&ﬁ-_JL‘:i
L2208 1 SPEUBLUL L B LHIMT e SOl S s i fL L L,
Ve FED L Lpi 65322 28 Enjrsg onfSenlISIMNS -Guilikr
Dec1 7l st 1.54x 908 P s BEUEHAMB(Un "1T:1.2540() & 43 Lot
13V (4.9 LHIMT)($ar 35.0H118TL 285§ T2
w2 (36,5477 2,2 (Dec'17: USD 708 million) 5/3c5 102662 wlie.y et
(a3 76 HI'T) (5

(Credit Rating) & o 4/

S(UBL) 2 & Bty /2018 w2 29 & (JCR-VIS )2 # & o4/ JCR-VIS
g2/ 4l S (Entity Ratings) sz 21 Bl ssi( Feiset /et f2) AAAIA-1 +
el Gpd:;; :.—fll-ﬂJf_.. Lﬂhﬂ.k/u..r; gr‘..ulfjl.?u_l:vf. b%ifl_ﬁigf-gﬁﬁ'J:f?ngg’ﬁ;
e MsE TSI e Hom eI 56 ) S UBL

Half ' rt 2018 | 63




bt 2 G e St L sl et I % B2 UBL OMINi sy U2 sk
—GUBL OMNi s s S %o/ U2 BRE 4 S fiord /624 UBLOMNI e (5
L 7 tls 2 € 0O _ g 22 ¥ s WCNIC bt (), O mni (fFess
e 2l S S snv S Uyl ie 1,500 £ 4 LA L 540,000
& (Fpt2018 R F2 8.2 Sine oS P ALK 148,000 24 NTB

(Economy Review) » ;ﬂﬂj":,a

Seted e 6 SRt e s S DL an L s S5\
V5 2 GDP 5Loikas $5.8 L FY 18.sic y et S1e £, GDP 0§ 37

- (FY'17:5.3 423)

e Jd L2017 40313.71 2_ i 10523 2 AFY 18T § b SUlr Ui
¢£+60.87 22018 Ll Ut AL (Imports) e s e b Seedb 2 S S brilo G -t
e M e*32.5 L2017 W STl3 K boe B _tear 315 31203 E
Gy bedlor S ST w8t C S A5 o A3 137 62201822 Buus
B e 18.0 UL AL 2018 L s el essfies /it s i sloiban .40
P 16.4£2018 2 Ul sk iae J42. 62BN A 210 12,605, L2017 UL
2 BL N 13T e as U1 e M £420.2 L2017 150 SFX 8
G £142018 80215043102 2017 15 L2 s 1,121.50 201823024 THansk st
JUdlezdiotoie ; sa5.2CP1 22018 pze o3 § sl by SEr 31284 poc B
Bl 1034.22 2017 Ll 24 1s03 3.9CPI 22018

Lﬁg‘—’yﬁmfumf 2018 (214415 25 5750 e o1 -,f'%?_ﬂ;;, 2
VE KUt -t 3ar 375020, M\ Eie 7 L5L1K 100bDS 4150bPS 2 e 57 &3
UG8 25bps (72018 525t g 13 Lol

2 AL sl a 336 EYTD CY18usei 4 /141,911 @{%Jc,-wu@uczmsug
S e Fl f b b5t s SES AL B EEL L ik

64 | United Bank Limited




IR\ i Lt S i CASAY oo B Gu sl L& e f
L §

b L L8046 L2017 5 ug s 6751 sdiisy Pl 6 F 20182
S Far (19 bz S i os S F e ool P2 SME sl py e iy Ko 3loiao (12
bl LAY ol bhtos }'J_E_g.uugi’léft“ Sliivd d fozbiniz | pin
LA IS &3k 21.09,DeC1 T) g1 BO0LIL 1 2291 220182
L5218 AL L, S Sue 8.6 g,r:;,tg.:;f'ju?_ufalﬁﬂ e 9! Jﬁﬁ,f,»”d:i-.é 37
ity eI s G SR Gag sl NT 62201802 L5 K160 L2 LAY/
L LuiFY

(Capital Ratins]jﬁxﬁr

& 5L 1811.3L2017 52 60 bps«, & A1 ,;J:L:ayfrwff,«ﬁyfrs’uaL
(wr(315.42Dect?) s 3163 T HSLEE Luwrd11.9 ALL5 it
Ll s Y 2018230 & etz tai b G 2018028 5 A 75T £ gy
VURIEE L P36 (300w 330 AL E0L Urid

(UBL Digital) J4~3UBL

Pz PSP INIBLAL 55y Ay ool y5 o oy S i P A AL s
Al s NN K ENTE Femd L & n Py JFh e (b3 i
GFIED oo KMo s Gonls s G2 S5 A SF ST
e SHLEYF e A (Uine Sorute J#

=S L1 1280T 341§/ 50 'UBL DIGITAL' Lol B Ll AUt Sl
Ad L 2508 gl ISP e QIR Cr 6 S AL I S
Lokl o d S el L LJ:IJJW;?;Ju'l_wJLEnyLE w253 QR
SN o S

Half Yearly Report 2018 | 65




o Bd 2 E L AL g s 21T F 2018z (TS L L g 1e2428.19

Fors (1T HIMT) L L L 50 00 543,78 400 s 00, 2 HI'18 2

oz (DECT 6.240(3) (3520520182 st i) A arbmp21Z L 1531

F2018un KL Silpody N dl BEUIE L& b ba i FA e BT g Ko e

(Dec'17 90.7420) (5ux2(488.8 & NPLS _fim3

b 5 L2017 ANPLSZEIL S L Sk oib2 (e s § e GCC

o2*5.08 sl H1'18 &L 0 22018 e 1,*28.26 AL Buiis )-L,J?_;J,_.):’:E.SB

EA S NPLS P2 L s TOS MMV USE L lie sy oot e sy €2

VAT N8 Sl e { Sani58 2 Dec TS

A EASFNPLs (Dec1T: 7.9.42D)\ar37.7 J_L#K_—-.tg,::-w,i'u’-%uﬁa?ﬂ‘iﬁuﬁ
LA s (380 220182 12376 L2017

Bl Ko 460 2 T2 e UBLYY sy el FHe 14,53 2H1'18

(Cost Management) J‘if’ Kbl 7l

B ANAL PN L L S i b LI 2 12 L
3T H1'17 20 st 105 18.52 2 b AG I HIB_ e YBIE L U tf
SULA Ut S ie sy Bl i iloiae 34 Ut =TI & oL HINT Lo dGpio i osliae
_gH:::ﬁf;kijI{_ilfrlfj.r‘:sirﬁc.rl;lé: ﬁﬁ;ﬂb_uﬁuﬁgﬁsfhﬁ%éuégﬁd{&ﬁf
(P L PG B GE UL U s St Kae 33 It A1
3_’El'..'_'.-{?U’t!C:"Ii_.iﬁ‘:uIC:':"L,.?Jd:jL&FL):[EJ;IJF}EFJJFJ&JEU:L}%C{JE Jd:i-:;_l:ﬁ Ko A
SIS e 3437 e w0 (3429 L HIMT L T NI L L

(Balance Sheet Management) J-’,f'b’.:,_#u’é‘-’
PO el 34 (32017 /526 s syt .08 5 B3 £ 20182
Jn.:-fﬁ.lJ{.)jjgjJ,JIJLJLﬂJBéJSbJI}‘;EH:Lu&LLEGTEdﬁi ﬁ't}dﬁf;ﬁjh;aj;g&.

66 | United Bank Limited




(Non-Markup Income) w41 flut

b ie 16L& L HI1T 2(NFI) guTZigt (H1'17: 31%) 7, 3u Tt/ G an(34
P LTINS sz T 0 PUF NP K (8 ne14.29,

DAl P R D

H1'17 gfﬁ_g;,..c;ﬁﬁ.?aut H118 ;zt_-{,nuc';‘—'pz AL (H1MT: 48%) NFITssiasd 47
L P2 L it ASAK S P daTe Pl Jo—emb i 314 1L 2L
(sl e (330

&I L,r._fdd':frﬁ é_ﬁ::'_esgfi_ﬁbo:uruﬂd:iﬂ L;ﬁz@i:c_lhfﬂ% 2L NLHT
Ui 6 Sy I dloran (29 2 YL A4 o & L PSS p il
4:4¢Jﬁ5‘”:<d’ UK 3 AL 210 U382 340,000 il (H1'17: 329,000)H1'18
SEASAG e inios( 35 LT FNLL BL Us b o $ug i o6
22 Ty oy S G i S aiB32 LA B L HAMT 252 oy S Y oy
P o152 duTe s itd Bl HIMT 2, Bt S 4 2 S Ttz w
L o5 ud26 22 Lo S ;ﬁf}bﬁg Aer e L Je o p 2t L S¥
FE A 21 25§ Debt Arrangement Mandate zsl £ JgLJqurg,thsl_;
MPRMREY M

St A 2, b3 2 4384 EHINT) LG s 458 S IFE
SR 101 29 L HIMT) S 10811634 Tor/ Woe S g S Fogss)
S ASa89.20uT0 S8k k3 Si sl H1'18 _I,Ju-rg;_;,Juy_gf;lJﬁﬁ}_}.‘;&}lm
SATe FXEHIMB AL & il udT6 4 Bl HIMT _(HI'1T: 9.4%) Sl fr sl
I Vo A s mGSK g A S Koo Kps S o1 S isesser™1.45
-ﬁ_ciua-..-._m:r

(Provision and Loan Losses) rﬁuﬁiﬁgmﬁﬂﬂ:uﬁ;.&)
L2017 /52 w2 i f s o, £ U § S ernss S s 288 s S5

Half ' rt 2018 | 67




(Financial Results) éDJQL

(L1324 L HIMT) e (PAT) 6.278 bt F¢ UBLZ L H1'18
2811 UBL B f5e 1108201l HIMT G s/(EPS) 512 TS
-(ré._ug[:k'lE.EQUCHV'{?}_L[ﬁ;EuFﬂT%u

(Net Markup Income) u.;T.rr._ﬁL..hf

g 2BAUT NIl 118 &2, Jusfens 1SS

B S S s B2UHIMB St g st 1 LHTT AU Bt
s bz cogn i Ll e £ Jjgi.:.;fu::.&;_ﬁ-ﬂi_iu-:,,@r‘g’uﬁyﬁu{
£ L PGy oL NTB SV o 88 8 uund1T op S
P oo 386.3 LHT8 foh e 10382.4 55/ o FCASA MIX HAMT _Eand sl 2
32,60 2H118 el e §2.75 SHIMT S s S st 2 bt
NS PE o221 28 LH1MB AL S Lous36 H1MT 2 it (n
BEB L eSSt c comgn S el O sV § Slisy ¥
.:.;;..*;GE:’:c,ll','fk...ETH@Hff?ﬁﬁdﬁéé_),ﬁb,:faﬂbuﬁﬁLd[ﬁrr"JJEJE.Z
e 37.5.£2018(y2c 42(36.542018(7 dntle o0 SE_LoI 2

AL b 1T L 10338 LH1'8 LA B LHT ddsy Psdt fugl 6l L)
LHIMTL Pinfle os§E ot sbho sy £os) e iy 6, AV 3K 31455 4
Sbdsg B snr S it F e P 1 um $35 A1 £HI B2
urhm..iL&|ur:):_E»L:ifdbuiszME,yﬁgJ‘bJuiutﬁ|Jf(.*j_;jﬁpglg_:.},fﬁm
N-tstilotir §33 i g e oa§ EIOIT Fo 2 u0328 4 B L HIMT et S
S2017 251 3ol an($52.1 22018z e 4o (345.9 22017 a2t e o3 Aol
(.2 }47.3

e 48T LH118 B PIBY LG £d L FnPIB (L 1t555 (EH1'T
_@;J‘L,_a,,grvg"{;:-m._r,,-;:i_n.;:;__?,&,rr@ﬂdgutH1'1? ﬁCJATE/;L;ﬁijHGB‘E
i 3t286 EH1M8 o2 e s 183 L HIMT i sy 35

68 | United Bank Limited




...w;;(ﬁ)f/’li/u&i

e QWL 2 G ity d L uadl 150 nPY 2018230 O A1 85 Ti
caend e 2t IR

(Performance Highlights) » 765+, ¢
LB HEIL G AL 3ol s 313 HIMT s SUTEI bt idde £ 2018 1
< 277,000 2HY'18.518,547, i/ od (NTB) _7_:-—‘;;"&4‘-,:.5.,;;.3,@._@ AL
L LngtB2 e s (L A (HYT: 240,000 L 4 Ak
ot LTy e 438 AL L(HIMT 418 Jus 17 il
= s JA0LZHIMT 0 gifuj;l;r Fdrfﬂl..*Jigldif‘.ﬁ;“ﬁhﬁmlﬁiu!u:‘_ﬁfcﬂﬂz{fjih ;
75 L Uz iduin Sedu k JE SR E L 1 Vnaedas LH1'18 Ly
- (15 bpsc ws(32.75 L HYT 175,442,680 HY 18, UL 36 A 3Loikiec bps

2§ M7 (S s 42.3 A 118 2 W 5LiKan 35 L T e B L HTT
LHIMT (Sog sl 18 3uaT 2t (3 el 280 Julo/ Poc epiivs
_;I-_::#g!ﬂf(ﬁfd;ﬂ:ﬂﬁé{ﬁfuﬂijJfJLéIFMJ1BJJ;..IE-

3429 LH1T e s 18.5 AL 3 Lian(7 4l Sl JLUEHIMB bl A1 S 621
w3437 K TSIt s Bl as

-fizwgu;‘; 2 ..*a,f.f:@"r_ugcl“i SEH1182 Lk 7Y @';f&!ﬁ.w;ﬁ.&fﬁ}l
T a7 20182 AL SIS L 5L JRae3T.9L2017 5150
(&t22.97 £HTMT ) u,;%.,.q_.;_"qn.ﬁn{PBT)étfﬁ:‘_fé{gg:H1'1s

JE uﬁc)’:ﬁ:ﬁL,G/:-’—'}fd;ug):k3.4'3J;tlﬁjlilfiuij.{tdfu:_géfjtmﬂ.iﬂ:‘%£.Jl.r
L¥19.01LHIM8PBT e bl bl (Ut st 17 2 AL Uty e S
Vg

Half Yearly Report 2018 | 69




NOTES

70 | United Bank Limited




UBL

where you come first

UNITED BANK LIMITED

UBL Head Office, I.I. Chundrigar Road,
Karachi - 74000, Pakistan.

UAN: 111-825-888

Website: www.ubldirect.com



